
BOARD AGENDA COVER  

Page 1 of 3 

 
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING 
Board of Directors 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN by the undersigned, as the Executive Director of the Southern California 
Public Power Authority, that a regular meeting of the Board of Directors is to be held as follows: 
 

 
SCPPA, upon request, will provide reasonable accommodation to the disabled to ensure equal access 
to its meetings. To ensure availability, such request should be made 72 hours in advance by contacting 
the Authority at (626) 793-9364 or administration@scppa.org during business hours. 

 
The following matters are the business to be transacted and considered by the Board of Directors: 

 
1. NOTICE / AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

Members of the public may address the Board at this time on any item on today’s agenda or any 
other item that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board. Comments from members 
of the public shall be limited to three (3) minutes unless additional time is approved by the Board. 
Any member of the Board may request that items on the agenda be taken out of order, or that 
items be added to the agenda pursuant to the provisions of Section 54954.2(b) of the California 
Government Code.    
 

2. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Thursday, March 21, 2024 

10:00 AM 

Southern California Public Power Authority Training Facility 

1172 Nicole Ct.  

Glendora, CA 91740 

Any writings or documents provided to the Board of Directors 
regarding any item on this agenda subsequent to distribution of the 
agenda packet will be made available for public inspection at 
SCPPA’s Office set forth above, during normal business hours. 
Members of the public may participate in the meeting in person or via 
teleconferencing and may also view any documents made available 
during the meeting, using the following information: 
 

Call 
Dial: 888-788-0099 

Meeting ID: 923 7238 1802 
Passcode: 914368 

Meeting 
Zoom: Join Meeting 

Meeting Materials: Access Here 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E1377A8-CF83-4D1B-9A49-8B74B82F4200

mailto:administration@scppa.org
https://scppa-org.zoom.us/j/92372381802?pwd=dDYyWFd1RHBiRTNaYitacmxCR3BHUT09
http://www.scppa.org/


BOARD AGENDA COVER  

Page 2 of 3 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and will all be enacted 
by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items prior to the time the Board 
votes on the motion, unless one or more Board members, staff, or a member of the public 
requests that specific items be discussed and/or removed for separate discussion or action. 
 
A. Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 

o Special Meeting Minutes: January 31, 2024 
o Special Meeting Minutes (Morning): February 15, 2024 
o Regular Meeting Minutes: February 15, 2024  
o Special Meeting Minutes (Afternoon): February 15, 2024 
o Special Meeting Minutes: March 5, 2024 

B. Receive and File: 
1. CY 2023 Q4 Renewables Operating Report 
2. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2024 
3. Monthly Investment Report: January 2024 
4. SCPPA A&G Budget Comparison Report: January 2024 
5. Palo Verde Report: February 2024 
6. Magnolia Power Project Operations Report: February 2024 
7. Federal Legislative Report: February 2024 

 
3. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 

The Executive Director will provide a report on the activities of the Authority since the last Board 
Meeting. 
A. Working Group Update  

 
4. CHIEF FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 

A. Cost of Living Adjustment 

B. Resolution 2024-011 

Approver Apex Power Project Bond Refunding – Initial Authorizing Resolution 

 
5. GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS REPORT 

The Director of Government Affairs will report on regional, state, and/or federal legislative and 
regulatory activities affecting Southern California public power utilities, including climate change, 
air quality, wildfire mitigation, renewable energy and traditional energy resources, transportation 
and building electrification, alternative energy supplies, resource planning, market and utility 
operations, and joint powers agreements. 
A. Federal Issues Update, including APPA Rally/SCPPA Fly-In Recap, Direct Pay 

Regulations, Transformer Supply Chain Issues 
B. State Regulatory Update, including POU-CEC March 19th Meeting 
C. State Legislative Update, including Net Energy Metering (AB 2619, Connolly), Pole 

Attachments, Other Recently Introduced Bills 
 

6. CLOSED SESSION 
A. Public Employment – Executive Director 
B. Conference with Labor Negotiator.  Agency Representative: Tikan Singh, President. 

Unrepresented Employee: Executive Director 
C. Public Employee Appointment – Interim Executive Director 
D. Conference with Labor Negotiator.  Agency Representative: Tikan Singh, President. 

Unrepresented Employee: Interim Executive Director 
 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E1377A8-CF83-4D1B-9A49-8B74B82F4200



BOARD AGENDA COVER  

Page 3 of 3 

 
7. REPORT OUT OF CLOSED SESSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

A. Appointment of Interim Executive Director 
B. Oral recommendation re salary and/or fringe benefits of Interim Executive Director  
C. Discussion and possible approval of salary and/or fringe benefits of Interim 

Executive Director  
 

8. BOARD OFFICER APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointment of Officers – Assistant Secretary and Treasurer/Auditor of the Authority 

 
9. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

A. Opportunity for Board Members to bring up informational items or request that an 

item be added to a future Board Agenda. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 

 
  

Michael S. Webster 
Executive Director 

Southern California Public Power Authority 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 3E1377A8-CF83-4D1B-9A49-8B74B82F4200



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 01-31-2024 

 

Page 1 of 3 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held on January 31, 2024, at Southern California 
Public Power Authority Training Center, 1172 Nicole Court, Glendora, CA 91740 and via 
teleconference from the following locations: 
 
The meeting was conducted by teleconference from: 
 

Anaheim Public Utilities 
11th Floor Large Conference 

Room 
201 S. Anaheim Blvd. #1101 

Anaheim, CA 92805 

 

Azusa Light & Water 
729 N Azusa Ave, 
Azusa, CA 91702 

City of Banning 
176 East Lincoln St. 
Banning, CA 92220 

Burbank Water & Power 
164 West Magnolia Blvd. 

Burbank, CA 91502 

Cerritos City Hall  
Public Works Conference 

Room 
18125 Bloomfield Ave. 

Cerritos, CA 90703 

 
 
 

Colton Electric Utility 
150 S. 10th Street 
Colton, CA 92324 

Glendale Water & Power 
GWP Administration Office  

141 N. Glendale Ave. Suite 450 
Glendale, CA 91206 

 

Riverside Public Utilities 
Mission Square 5th Floor  

3750 University Ave Suite 
500 

Riverside, CA 92501 
 

Vernon City Hall 
General Manager Office 

3rd Floor 
4305 S. Santa Fe Ave 

Vernon, CA 90058 
 
 

Imperial Irrigation District 
Energy Administration Office  

Conference D 
1653 W. Main St. 

El Centro, CA 92243 
 
 

Los Angeles Department of 
Water & Power 

111 North Hope St. Room 1132 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 01-31-2024 

 

Page 2 of 3 

 

 
 The meeting was called to order at 9:00 AM by the President.  Ms. Salpi Ortiz took roll. 
 

The following Board Members 
(B) or Alternates (A) were 
present: 

Anaheim:  Dukku Lee (B) 
Azusa: Tikan Singh (B) 
 Banning: Jim Steffens (B)  
 Burbank:  Joseph Lillio (B) 
Cerritos: Mike O’Grady (A) 
    Colton: Charles Berry (B) 
Glendale: Mark Young (B) 
           IID: Sabrina Barber (A) 
   LADWP: Ashkan Nassiri (A) 

  Pasadena:  
     Riverside: Todd Corbin (B) 

    Vernon: Todd Dusenberry (B) 
   

 
 

1. NOTICE/AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Mr. Tikan Singh, Board President went through the web conference protocol. Mr. Singh invited 

comments from the public. There were no public comments.  

 
2. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT 

Randy Krager, Project Development Manager, presented Resolutions 2024-003 and 2024-004 
to the Board of Directors for approval:  
A. Resolution 2024-003 

Approve Amendment No.2 to the Eland Solar and Storage Center, Phase 1 Project Power 
Purchase Agreement; Find such Action Exempt from the California Environmental Quality 
Act (CEQA) 
 

B. Resolution 2024-004 
Approve Amendments No.1 and No. 2 to the Eland Solar and Storage Center, Phase 2 
Project Power Purchase Agreement and Amendment No. 1 to the Eland 2 Option Agreement; 
Find such Action Exempt from CEQA. 
 

           Moved by: Ashkan Nassiri, LADWP 
Seconded: Mark Young, Glendale Water & Power   
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote (Project Vote- Eland 1 and Eland 2 Projects): 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 01-31-2024 

 

Page 3 of 3 

 

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    

Cerritos X    

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID X    

LADWP X    

Pasadena    X 

Riverside X    

Vernon X    

 
3. CLOSED SESSION 

Ms. Godinez read into the record the two items on the Closed Session Agenda: 

A. Conference with Legal Counsel – Anticipated Litigation. Significant Exposure to 

Litigation pursuant o Paragraphs d(2) and e(2) of Government Code Section 54956.9; 

One potential case. The case name is unspecified in order to not jeopardize SCPPA’s 

ability to conclude existing settlement negotiations to its advantage. 

B. Public Employment- Executive Director. 

 

The Board went into closed session at 9:11 a.m. and resumed to open session at 10:04 a.m.  

 

4. Report Out of Closed Session 

Christine Godinez, General Counsel, stated that the Board had no items to report out of closed 

session.  

 

5. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Singh adjourned the meeting at 10:05 a.m. 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

     ___________________ 
Michael S. Webster 
 Executive Director  

 



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 02-15-2024 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held on February 15, 2024, at Southern California 
Public Power Authority, 1160 Nicole Court, Glendora, CA 91740.  The meeting was called to order at 
8:45 AM by the President.  Ms. Salpi Ortiz took roll. 
 

The following Board Members 
(B) or Alternates (A) were 
present: 

Anaheim:  Dukku Lee (B) 
Azusa: Tikan Singh (B) 
 Banning: Jim Steffens (B)  
 Burbank:  Joseph Lillio (B) 
Cerritos:  
    Colton: Charles Berry (B) 
Glendale: Mark Young (B) 
           IID:  
   LADWP: Ashkan Nassiri (A) 

  Pasadena:  
     Riverside:  

    Vernon: Todd Dusenberry (B) 
   

 
 

1. NOTICE/AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Mr. Tikan Singh, Board President went through the in-person and web conference protocol. 

Mr. Singh stated that there is one item on the agenda: Public Employment – Executive 

Director. He invited comments from the public. There were no public comments.  

 
2. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board went into closed session at 8:55 a.m. and returned to open session at 9:58 a.m. 

Ms. Godinez stated that there were no items to report out.   

 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Singh adjourned the meeting at 9:59 a.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

     ___________________ 
Michael S. Webster 
 Executive Director  



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 1 of 7 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

 
A regular meeting of the Board of Directors was held on February 15, 2024, at Southern California 
Public Power Authority Training Center, 1172 Nicole Court, Glendora, CA 91740.  The meeting was 
called to order at 10:00 AM by the President.   
 
Ms. Salpi Ortiz took roll. 
 

The following Board Members 
(B) or Alternates (A) were 
present: 

Anaheim:  Dukku Lee (B) 
     Azusa:  Tikan Singh (B) 
 Banning: Jim Steffens (B)  
 Burbank:  Joseph Lillio (B) 
  Cerritos:   
    Colton: Charles Berry (B) 
Glendale: Mark Young (B)  
           IID:  
  LADWP: Ashkan Nassiri (A)  

  Pasadena: Lynne Chaimowitz (A) 
   Riverside:     

    Vernon: Todd Dusenberry (B) 
   

 
 

1. NOTICE/AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Tikan Singh, Board President, went through the in-person and web conference protocol. 
Michael Webster, Executive Director, went through the emergency safety protocols for the in-
person meeting participants. Mr. Singh noted that item 8A Conference with Legal Counsel – 
Potential Initiation of Litigation: One Case; Government Code § 54956.9(d)(4) has been 
removed from the agenda. Mr. Singh invited comments from the public. There were no public 
comments. 
 

2. BOARD OFFICER ELECTION 
First Vice President  
Mr. Singh opened the nominations for SCPPA First Vice President to fill the seat of Sidney 
Jackson. Dukku Lee, Anaheim, nominated Todd Dusenberry, Vernon, for First Vice President. 
Mark Young, Glendale, seconded the nomination. 
 
Second Vice President  
Mr. Singh opened the nominations for SCPPA Second Vice President.  Mr.  Dusenberry 
nominated Mr. Lee for Second Vice President. Mr. Young seconded the nomination. 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 2 of 7 

 

As there were no other nominations, Mr. Singh declared Mr. Dusenberry as First Vice 
President and MR. Lee as Second Vice President. 

 
 
 

3. CONSENT CALENDAR 
A. Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting 

▪ Regular Meeting Minutes: January 18, 2024 
B. Receive and File: 

1. Finance Committee Meeting Minutes: January 8, 2024 
2. Monthly Investment Report: December 2023 
3. Quarterly Investment Report: December 2023 
4. SCPPA A&G Budget Comparison Report: December 2023 
5. Palo Verde Report: December 2023 
6. Magnolia Power Project Operations Report: January 2024  
7. Federal Legislative Report: January 2024 

C. Resolution 2024-005 
Approve Amendment No. 1 to the Master Goods and Services Agreement with Ice Bear SPV 
#1 LLC, d/b/a Thule Energy Storage to extend the agreement for a final three-year term, and 
to approve price increases for Ice Bear maintenance services 

D. Resolution 2024-006 
Approve Amendment No. 4 to the Master Goods and Services Agreement with Willdan 
Energy Solutions to update and implement bi-annual labor rates increases pursuant to the 
terms of the agreement and consistent with a negotiated labor agreement  

 
 

Moved by: Dukku Lee, Anaheim Public Utilities  
Seconded: Todd Dusenberry, Vernon Public Utilities   
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote: 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    

Cerritos    X 

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID    X 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 3 of 7 

 

LADWP X    

Pasadena X    

Riverside    X 

Vernon X    

 
 

4. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  
A. Working Group Update 

Mr. Webster informed the Board that the SCPPA Finance Committee has a new chair, Mr. 
Richard Corbi, from Vernon. Mr. Joseph Lillio from Burbank will remain as Vice Chair of the 
Finance Committee. He extended gratitude to Mr. Brian Beelner from Anaheim for his 
dedicated service as the Finance Committee chair for the past two years. 
 
Mr. Webster informed the Board that the American Public Power Association is accepting 
sponsors for their annual conference. He stated that CMUA is coordinating participation  for 
members who wish to sponsor  individually and offered that members can let Mr. Webster 
know if they’d like to sponsor collectively through SCPPA.  
 
Mr. Webster announced that the SCPPA Annual Conference will be on October 10, 2024, 
at the Sheraton Hotel in Downtown Los Angeles, SCPPA staff will be emailing a save the 
date for members to add to their calendar. 
 
Mr. Webster updated the Board on the successful Annual SCPPA Working Group open 
house meeting held on February 14th with about 70 people in attendance.  
 
Lastly, Mr. Webster announced the formation of a Demand Response working group and 
requested names for Member participants.  

 
5. CHIEF FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT 

A. Resolution 2024-008 

Initial authorizing resolution authorizing preparation of all documents necessary or 
appropriate to sell and issue Southern Transmission System Renewal Project Revenue 
Bonds for the Southern Transmission System Renewal Project Bond Issuance (Second 
Tranche); finding such action is exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act 
 
Ms. Aileen Ma, Chief Financial & Administrative Officer presented Resolution 2024-008 to 
the Board for consideration and approval. Mr. Lee requested a rough summary of how 
Members exiting the Intermountain Power Project are affected. Ms. Ma explained that the 
project comprises of several components, each with its own projected in-service date. Debt 
service is being established for each component with respect to its in-service date. For any 
components that will be placed into service before the transition date of June 16, 2027, 
debt service will be allocated among the six participants of the STS project. 
 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 4 of 7 

 

 
 
 

Moved by: Mark Young, Glendale Water & Power  
Seconded: Ashkan Nassiri, LADWP 
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote (Project Vote – STS Renewal Project): 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    

Cerritos    X 

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID    X 

LADWP X    

Pasadena X    

Riverside    X 

Vernon X    

 
 

6. PROJECT DEVELOPMENT REPORT  
A. Resolution 2024-007  

Approve and authorize execution and delivery of Power Sales Agreements between 
SCPPA and each of the cities of Pasadena and Azusa related to the Bonanza Solar and 
Storage Project; find such action exempt from the California Environmental Quality Act  

 
Mr. Randy Krager, Project Development Manager presented Resolution 2024-007 to the Board 
for consideration and approval.  
 
Moved by: Tikan Singh, Azusa Light & Water 
Seconded: Lynne Chaimowitz, Pasadena Water & Power 
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote (Project Vote – Bonanza Solar and Storage Project): 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 5 of 7 

 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    

Cerritos    X 

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID    X 

LADWP X    

Pasadena X    

Riverside    X 

Vernon X    

 
7. GOVERNMENT AFFAIRS DIRECTOR’S REPORT  

A. Resolution 2024-009 

Approve and adopt Annual Update to SCPPA’s Guiding Policy Principles for Legislative 

and Regulatory Activities 

 

Mario De Bernardo, Government Affairs Director presented Resolution 2024-009 to the Board 

for consideration and approval. 

 

Moved by: Dukku Lee, Anaheim Public Utilities 
Seconded: Todd Dusenberry, Vernon Public Utilities 
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote: 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 6 of 7 

 

Cerritos    X 

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID    X 

LADWP X    

Pasadena X    

Riverside    X 

Vernon X    

 

B. State Regulatory Update 

Natalie Seitzman, Policy Analyst, presented a state regulatory update, including power 

source disclosure pre-rulemaking. 

C. Federal Issues Update 

Mr. De Bernardo presented a federal update on the current issues with transformers. 

 

D. State Legislative Update  
Mr. De Bernardo presented a state legislative update, including Capitol Day recap and 
2024 bill introduction update. 
 

E. Update  
Mr. De Bernardo presented an update on APPA Federal Rally/SCPPA Fly-In for February 
26-28th.  

 
8. CLOSED SESSION 

Mr. Singh again announced that item 8A was pulled from the Agenda and Christine Godinez, 

General Counsel read the remainder of the Closed Session items. The Board entered Closed 

Session at 10:51 am and resumed back into the main session at 11:00 am.  

 

9. REPORT OUT RE: CLOSED SESSION AND ACTION ITEMS 

A. Report out of Closed Session 
Ms. Godinez stated that there were no items to report out of Closed Session. 

B. Oral recommendation re proposed changes to salary and/or fringe benefits of 
Executive Director 
Ms. Godinez presented an oral recommendation regarding proposed changes to the salary 
and/or fringe benefits of the Executive Director. Ms. Godinez asked if there were any public 
comments. No public comments were made.  

C. Discussion and possible approval of changes to salary and/or fringe benefits of 
Executive Director  
Resolution 2024-010 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 7 of 7 

 

Approve Addendum No. 1 to the December 15, 2016, Employment Contract between the 
Authority and Executive Director Michael S. Webster and Delegate Authority to the 
President of the Board of Directors and Authority General Counsel to take certain action in 
connection therewith 
 

Ms. Godinez presented Resolution 2024-010 to the Board for consideration and approval. Mr. 
Singh asked for any public comments; no public comments were made. 

  
Moved by: Dukku Lee, Anaheim Public Utilities 
Seconded: Charles Berry, Colton Electric Utility  
 
Ms. Ortiz took a Roll Call vote: 

 Yes No 
Present, Not 
Voting 

Absent 

Anaheim X    

Azusa X    

Banning X    

Burbank X    

Cerritos    X 

Colton X    

Glendale X    

IID    X 

LADWP X    

Pasadena X    

Riverside    X 

Vernon X    

 
 

10. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 

A. Opportunity for Board Members to bring up informational items or request that an 

item be added to a future Board Agenda. 

Mr. Lee proposed including a discussion regarding the cost-of-living adjustment for FY 

2024-25 in the upcoming March Board of Directors meeting.  

 

 

11. ADJOURNMENT 



 

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 2-15-2024 

 

Page 8 of 7 

 

Mr. Singh adjourned the meeting at 11:10 a.m. 

 
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

     ___________________ 
 Michael S. Webster  
 Executive Director  



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 02-15-2024 

 

Page 1 of 1 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held on February 15, 2024, at Southern California 
Public Power Authority, 1160 Nicole Court, Glendora, CA 91740.  The meeting was called to order at 
12:30 PM by the President.  Ms. Salpi Ortiz took roll. 
 

The following Board Members 
(B) or Alternates (A) were 
present: 

Anaheim:  Dukku Lee (B) 
Azusa: Tikan Singh (B) 
 Banning: Jim Steffens (B)  
 Burbank:  Joseph Lillio (B) 
Cerritos:  
    Colton: Charles Berry (B) 
Glendale: Mark Young (B) 
           IID:  
   LADWP: Ashkan Nassiri (A) 

  Pasadena:  
     Riverside:  

    Vernon: Todd Dusenberry (B) 
   

 
 

1. NOTICE/AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Mr. Tikan Singh, Board President went through the in-person and web conference protocol. 

Mr. Singh stated that there is one item on the agenda: Public Employment – Executive 

Director. He invited comments from the public. There were no public comments.  

 
2. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board went into closed session at 12:33 p.m. and returned to open session at 3:50 p.m. 

Ms. Godinez stated that there were no items to report out.   

 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Singh adjourned the meeting at 3:52 p.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

     ___________________ 
Michael S. Webster 
 Executive Director  



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 03-05-2024 

 

Page 1 of 2 

 

  

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF THE SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

 
A special meeting of the Board of Directors was held on March 5, 2024, at Southern California Public 
Power Authority, 1160 Nicole Court, Glendora, CA 91740 and via teleconference from the following 
locations:   
 

Anaheim Public Utilities 
11th Floor Large Conference 

Room 
201 S. Anaheim Blvd. #1101 

Anaheim, CA 92805 

 

Azusa Light & Water 
729 N Azusa Ave, 
Azusa, CA 91702 

City of Banning 
176 East Lincoln St. 
Banning, CA 92220 

Burbank Water & Power 
164 West Magnolia Blvd. 

Burbank, CA 91502 

Cerritos City Hall  
City Manager’s Conference 

Room 
18125 Bloomfield Ave. 

Cerritos, CA 90703 

 
 
 

Colton Electric Utility 
150 S. 10th Street 
Colton, CA 92324 

Glendale Water & Power 
GWP Administration Office  

141 N. Glendale Ave. Suite 450 
Glendale, CA 91206 

 

Riverside Public Utilities 
Mission Square 5th Floor  

3750 University Ave Suite 
500 

Riverside, CA 92501 
 

Vernon City Hall 
General Manager Office 

3rd Floor 
4305 S. Santa Fe Ave 

Vernon, CA 90058 
 
 

Los Angeles Department of 
Water & Power 

111 North Hope St. Room 1132 
Los Angeles, CA 90012 

 
 

  
 

 
The meeting was called to order at 4:00 PM by the First Vice President of the SCPPA Board.  Ms. 
Salpi Ortiz took roll. 
 



 

 
MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  Meeting Date: 03-05-2024 

 

Page 2 of 2 

 

The following Board Members 
(B) or Alternates (A) were 
present: 

Anaheim:  Dukku Lee (B) 
Azusa:  
 Banning: Jim Steffens (B)  
 Burbank:  Joseph Lillio (B) 
Cerritos: Robert Lopez (B) 
    Colton: Charles Berry (B) 
Glendale: Scott Mellon (A) 
           IID:  
   LADWP: Ashkan Nassiri (A) 

  Pasadena:  
     Riverside: Todd Corbin (B) 

    Vernon: Todd Dusenberry (B) 
   

 
 

1. NOTICE/AGENDA AND OPPORTUNITY FOR THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
Mr. Todd Dusenberry, First Vice President, went through the web conference protocol. Mr. 

Dusenberry announced that there was one item on the agenda, a Closed Session item on 

Public Employment – Executive Director. He invited comments from the public. There were no 

public comments.  

 
2. CLOSED SESSION 

The Board went into closed session at 4:03 p.m. and resumed to open session at 4:45 p.m. 

Ms. Godinez stated that there were no items to report out.   

 

3. ADJOURNMENT 

Mr. Dusenberry adjourned the meeting at 4:45 p.m.  
 

Respectfully Submitted, 
 

 

     ___________________ 
Michael S. Webster 
 Executive Director  



Renewable Project 
Performance Report

Prepared by:
Nicole Solano 

Senior Utility Analyst

February 1st, 2023

For The Period Beginning
October 1st and Ending December 31st, 

2023



Page
Hydro MWD ..…………………………………………. 1

Tieton ……………………………………………………..2

Landfill Gas Chiquita Canyon…...…………………………3

Puente Hills…………………………………….......4

Geothermal Casa Diablo IV…........................................5

Coso….......................................... 6

Heber-I………………………………………………7

Don A. Campbell I …………………………….8

Don A. Campbell II …………………………….9

NNGP……………………………………………………10

StarPeak…...........................................11

Ormesa…………………………………….. 12

Whitegrass No. 1….................................13

Wind Pebble Springs…………………………………….14

Windy Flats……………………………………….15

Linden……………………………………………….16

Milford I ……………………………………………17

Milford II……………………………………………18

Red Cloud…...................................... 19

Solar Antelope Big Sky Ranch………………………….20

Antelope DSR I & II………………………........21

Astoria 2………………………………………........22

Columbia Two…………………………………….23

Copper Mountain 3………………………………..24

Desert Harvest II…..................................25

Kingbird B………………………………………......26

Springbok I-III……………………………………………………..27-29

Summer………………………………………………………………30

Table of Contents



Biomass Loyalton…...…………………………………….....31

Roseburg…........................................2932

Table of Contents Cont. 



Location: 4 locations throughout Southern California

Type: Hydro

COD: 1-Nov-08

Capacity (MWs): 17.08

Term: 15 years & 2 months (ending 31-Dec-23)

Participants: % MWs

Anaheim 56% 9.56

Azusa 22% 3.76

Colton 22% 3.76

100% 17.08

Operations Notes:

`

3/5/2024

MWD SMALL HYDRO

 -1-

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

2,500

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

1%

2%

3%

4%

5%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

The MWD small hydro project's Perris facility generated each month during the period. YTD NCF closed 
at 4%. The MWD PPA expired on December 31, 2023. 



Location: 40 miles west of Yakima, WA

Type: Hydro

Acquisition: 30-Nov-09

Capacity (MWs): 13.6

Term: Permanent Ownership

Participants: % MWs

Burbank 50% 6.80

Glendale 50% 6.80

100% 13.60

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

TIETON SMALL HYDRO

 -2-

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

10,000

12,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

In early October, both generators were taken offline independently of each other for generator saturation 
curve testing, with both units passing inspection. Minor adjustments to the Unit-1 exciter were also made. 
After approximately a week, both units continued to operate exceptionally well despite running in what would 
normally be a rough zone when the reservoir is at a higher capacity. A low oil level turbine guide bearing alarm 
came for Unit-2 and the sensor was found to have oil on it. It was was cleaned and resumed functioning 
thereafter. By mid-month, both units were taken offline concluding the 2023 operating season.

During the remaining months of the period, numerous mechanical, electrical, and operational repairs and 
replacements took place, in addition to several annual services and maintenance.

Both units are expected to return online in the Spring. 

YTD NCF finished at 32%, approximately 14% below the same period last year and approximately 3% below 
historic averages.



Location: Valencia, CA

Type: Landfill Gas

COD: 1-Nov-10

Capacity (MWs): 7.8 (net)

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Burbank 17% 1.30

Pasadena 83% 6.50

100% 7.80

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

CHIQUITA CANYON

 -3-

In early October, Unit 1 tripped offline due to a power outage at the facility, which lasted twenty-four hours. 
Unit 2 was also offline during the outage for an injector swap and water wash. Total downtime for U2 was 
forty-one hours. Mid-month, Unit 1 shut down due to a condenser fault for fourteen hours, while Unit 2 
remained offline for twelve hours for the same issue. Additional Balance Of Plant issues occurred mid-month 
resulting in additional down time to both units.

In November, both units experienced a shutdown due to low methane content. Downtime was approximately 
seventeen hours until higher quality gas was provided. Later in the month, both units were shutdown due to 
construction on the main gas line. After approximately ten hours, both units returned online. Low methane 
mid-month resulted in another outage on both units.

Unit 2 tripped offline due to low methane content in early December, returning online nineteen hours later. 
Later in the month, Unit 1 tripped offline for eighteen hours due to high temperatures. The unit was restarted 
after a fuel injector swap. Shortly after, both units experienced a power outage due to an SCE relay issue, 
returning online approximately seven hours later.

Generation this period is approximately 7,000 MWhs lower than during the same period last year, mostly due 
to the unplanned outages and degradation of the resource. NCF dipped from 57% during the same period last 
year to 48% for the current period, which is still approximately 11% below historical NCF averages.

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023



Location: City of Industry, CA

Type: Landfill Gas

COD: 1-Jan-17 (start of SCPPA deliveries)

Capacity (MWs): 41.5

Term: 10 years

Participants: % MWs

Banning 23.2558% 9.65

Colton 23.2558% 9.65

Pasadena 30.2326% 12.55

Vernon 23.2558% 9.65

100% 41.50

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

PUENTE HILLS

 -4-

The PERG facility operated during the period with 86.2% availability. There was one unplanned and one 
planned outage that took place. The unplanned plant outage was due to a fault on the SCE transmission 
system. Total downtime for the event was 2.5 hours. The facility was offline for a planned maintenance 
outage October 1 – 13. 

Critical path for the planned outage was the 5-year overhaul of the Fuji turbine valves. Decreased clearances 
and binding of the control valves were observed requiring immediate overhaul. Without overhaul of the 
steam turbine valves, a failure of the valves to open and close could have occurred and resulted in a forced 
repair outage that was prevented by prudent maintenance practices.

All major portions of PERG’s electrical distribution system were inspected, serviced and tested during the 
scheduled maintenance outage in October. The maintenance program covered all major equipment and 
components associated with the electrical distribution system. No major issues were found and minor 
deficiencies were corrected and repairs made.

YTD generation is slightly below last year's figures while YTD NCF closed the period at 43%, a 2% dip 
compared to the same period last year. 

0%

20%

40%

60%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023



Location: Mono County, CA

Type: Geothermal

COD: 14-Jul-22

Capacity (MWs): 16

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

Colton 100% 16.0

100% 16.0

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

CASA DIABLO IV

 -11-

Generation during October was over 11% below forecast due to approximately 50 hours of decreased 
generation caused by line replacements and faults. Availability closed for the month at 95%.

November generation finished at 4% below forecast despite overall stable plant performance with availability 
closing at 99%.

December generation closed at 11% below the forecast, despite normal operations at the facility with no 
reported downtime. Availability closed at 100%.

YTD NCF at the facility closed at 98% with generation reaching 138,000 MWhs for its first full calendar year in 
operation.

Casa Diablo IV is a 30 MW net capacity 
geothermal facility located in Mono County, 
California. SCPPA, on behalf of the City of 
Colton, entered into a 25-year Power 
Purchase Agreement for a 16 MW share of 
the facility.

9,500

10,000

10,500

11,000

11,500

12,000

Generation (MWhs)

2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

120%

YTD Capacity Factor

2022 2023



Location: Inyo County, CA

Type: Geothermal

DCD 1-Jan-22

Capacity (MWs): 18.2

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Banning 45% 8.19

Riverside 55% 10.01

Pasadena 0% 0.00

100% 18.2

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

COSO

 -5-

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

Generation (MWhs)

2022 2023

0%

50%

100%

150%

YTD Capacity Factor

2022 2023

There were no material events, defects, or malfunctions during the month. VCAISO/ADS curtailments for 
several days during early October related to grid reliability work in the area forced reduced generation for six 
days. Necessary plant work at Navy 1 in the last half of the month also contributed to reduced generation for a 
week. Availability for the month finished at over 95% and capacity factor for the month was over 89%. 

Numerous repairs and replacements were made at the facility during November in addition to preventative 
maintenance and audits. Availability closed at 100% and net capacity factor closed at over 99%. 

In December, major overhauls of the lube oil purifiers were made to the Navy I, Navy II, and BLM East units. 
Site and preventative maintenance was also performed during the month, in addition to road work and crane 
inspections. Availability closed at 98% for the month.

YTD generation is approximately 7,000 MWhs lower than the same period last year, and NCF finished the 
period at 94%- a 5% decline from 99% observed in December 2022. 



Location: Heber, CA

Type: Geothermal

COD: 2-Feb-16 (SCPPA deliveries began)

Capacity (MWs): 62.5

Term: 10 years

Participants: % MWs

IID 22% 13.75

LADWP 78% 48.75

100% 62.5

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

HEBER-1

 -6-

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Generation at the facility was 7% below forecast during 
the month and availability was 92% due to a thirty-six 
hour curtailment event and a few localized repairs and 
replacements at the facility.

November generation dipped to 3.8% below what was forecasted due to pump replacements, brine leaks, 
cleanings, tube leaks, and faults caused by high vibrations. Availability closed for the month at 96%. 

Production in December was 4% below forecast stemming from an IID curtailment mid-month. Despite the 
curtailment, there were no other operational impacts and availability closed at 99% for the month.

Improvements from the planned Spring outage and the OEC-11 repower over the summer have resulted in a 
dramatic jump in production for the period, with numbers returning to pre-2022 fire levels. YTD generation is 
over 100,000 MWhs higher than 2022 figures with YTD NCF climbing 20% compared to the same period last 
year.



Location: Mineral County, NV

Type: Geothermal

COD: 1-Jan-14

Capacity (MWs): 25

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Burbank 15% 3.85

LADWP 85% 21.16

100% 25

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

DON A. CAMPBELL 1

 -7-

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

October generation was 11.7% above forecast with 100% availability. Downtime was minimal with no 
reported generation loss. Plant performance remained stable. 

November production was 12.5% above forecast. Minor downtime was reported for the month due to repairs 
at the facility, but otherwise operations were normal. Availability closed at 100%.

Generation in December finished at 7% above forecasted numbers with stable plant performance and 
another month of no reported downtime or issues at the facility. Availability closed at 100%. 

Overall period performance was stable with YTD generation at 12.1% above forecast and YTD availability at 
100%. The YTD NCF showed a 3% decrease compared to the same period last year, dipping from 61% to 58%. 



Location: Mineral County, NV

Type: Geothermal

COD: 17-Sep-15

Capacity (MWs): 25

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 25.0

100% 25

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

DON A. CAMPBELL 2

 -8-

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Plant generation in October was 7% above 
forecast due to overall normal plant 
performance and no significant equipment 
issues. Monthly availability closed at 100%. 

November performance was 4% above forecast due to another month of normal operations, stable performance, 
and minimal downtime that did not significantly impact generation at the facility. Availability dipped to 97%. 

December generation finished at 1% above forecast due to a third month of stable performance with no reported 
downtime or equipment issues. There were also no recordable safety or OSHA incidents. Availability again closed 
at 100%. 

Actual YTD generation finished 9.8% above the forecast with availability closing at 99%. YTD NCF dipped 4% from 
the same period last year.



Location: Churchill & Washoe County, NV

Type: Geothermal

COD: 1-Dec-17

Capacity (MWs)*: 168.65

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 168.65

100% 168.65

Operations Notes:

* Capacity increases with each development period. Max capacity is capped at 185 MW.

3/5/2024 -9-

Northern Nevada                                  

Geothermal Portfolio

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

50%

100%

150%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

The McGinness Hills facility experienced some minor operational impacts during the period, including a ten-
hour NV Energy curtailment and NERC testing, both occurring in November. Plant generation was 15.6% above 
forecast YTD while maintaining 97% commercial availability for the year. 

The Steamboat Hills Facility operated normally during the period with only minor operational issues resulting 
in very little down time. Generation finished the period at 5% below forecast with availability closing at 99%. 

SB2-3 operated 19.7% below forecasted expectations for the period despite no noted outages or operational 
issues impacting generation. The Brady facility was down for four hours in December due to freezing on a feed 
pump, but otherwise operations were normal. YTD generation was on par with the forecast with availability 
closing at 99%. 

There were minimal operational issues at the Tungsten Mountain facility during the period; however, the 
facility experienced an eleven-hour NV Energy curtailment in November. YTD generation closed at 8% above 
the forecast, with YTD availability at 99%. Operations at the Galena 2 facility were normal for the period. YTD 
generation was 1.8% below the forecast and availability closed at 97% YTD.

YTD generation is the highest it has been since the facilities began making deliveries to SCPPA, due to the 
addition of the final facilities.



Location: Imperial County, CA

Type: Geothermal

COD: 1-Jan-18

Capacity (MWs): 35

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

IID 14% 5.0

LADWP 86% 30.0

100% 35.0
Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

ORMESA

 -10-

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

50%

100%

150%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

November generation closed at 4% above forecast, largely due to minimal operational issues and 
curtailments at the facility. Availability again closed at 100%.

In December, production was 12% below forecast due to a single IID curtailment event mid-month. 
Availability was not impacted and again closed at 100%.  

YTD generation at the facility closed at 0.2% above forecasted numbers. YTD NCF is down 4% compared to 
the same period last year, due to slightly lower production compared to the same period in 2022. YTD 
availability held at 100%. 

The facility experienced a transmission outage 
and a curtailment event in October; however, 
generation was minimally impacted and 
finished 9% above the forecast for the month 
with availability closing at 100%.



Location: Pershing County, NV

Type: Geothermal

COD: 28-Sep-22

Capacity (MWs): 12.5

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

Glendale 100% 12.5

100% 12.5

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

STAR PEAK

 -11-

In October, the facility reached 53.6% of contractual guarantees. Downtime during the month was caused by 
one unit coming offline to change bearings and check alignment. Plant wide availability closed at 100% for the 
month.

November deliveries reached 54.6% of guarantees due to the ST-1 unit being taken offline for the entire month 
for insufficient steam. Availability closed for the month at 100%.  

December production reached 52.6% of contractual guarantees, mostly due to the ST-1 unit remaining offline 
for an additional month from lack of steam.  Availability closed at 100% for the month. 

YTD NCF is 46% in the facility's first full calendar year of operation.

SCPPA continues to pursue Delay Damages from OME for Star Peak stemming from COD delay and current 
energy shortfalls. 

Star Peak is a 12.5 MW geothermal power 
plant located in Pershing County, Nevada. 
The facility reached Commercial Operation 
on September 28th, 2022.

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

7,000

Generation (MWhs)

2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

60%

YTD Capacity Factor

2022 2023



Location: Lyon County, NV

Type: Geothermal

COD: 1-Apr-20

Capacity (MWs): 3

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

Glendale 100% 3.0

100% 3.0

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

WHITEGRASS No. 1

 -11-

November generation reached 91% of contractual guarantees. The shortfall was mostly driven by a second 
bird incident at the site and downed transmission line close to the facility which resulted in a voltage 
imbalance. Availability closed at 96.25%.

December production reached 91.1% of the guaranteed amount, falling short by about 420 MWhs, despite no 
outages or reported operational issues. Availability closed at 100%.

The YTD plant percentage of guaranteed energy finished the period at 77% with YTD availability closing at over 
96.93%. During the period, the facility reached a NCF of 67%- 4% lower than observed during the same period 
last year. 

SCPPA continues to pursue shortfall damages from Open Mountain Energy for production below monthly 
guarantees. 

October production reached 89.8% of the 
guaranteed monthly delivered energy amount. 
The variance was primarily due to a plant
outage caused by a grid surge, and a bird-
related outage. Availability for the month 
closed at 99.6%. 

0

500

1,000

1,500

2,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023



Location: Gilliam County, OR

Type: Wind

COD: 31-Jan-09

Capacity (MWs): 98.7

Term: 18 years

Participants: % MWs

Burbank 10% 10.00

Glendale 20% 20.00

LADWP 70% 68.70

100% 98.7

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

PEBBLE SPRINGS

 -12-

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Operations at the facility were stable with production trailing slightly below historical averages. 
Production in December dipped to the second lowest level seen since the project began making 
deliveries to SCPPA.

Quarterly generation figures were approximately 7,000 MWhs lower than those seen during the same 
period in 2022 and approximately 4,000 MWhs below historical averages.  

YTD NCF closed at 22%, representing a 1% negative change from YTD 2022 figures. 



Location: Klickitat County, WA

Type: Wind

COD: 25-Jan-10

Capacity (MWs): 262.2

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 92% 242.19

Glendale* 8% 20.01

100% 262.2

Operations Notes:

*Through a separate layoff agreement, the City of Glendale sold 100% of its entitlement to capacity and energy to LADWP.

3/5/2024

WINDY FLATS

 -13-

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

In October, the facility experienced below forecast production, generating over 15,000 MWhs below the same 
month the prior year, due to below forecast wind speed and lack of wind resource. There was a five day 
outage to repair fiber lines between the Energizer and Dooley substations. One generator was replaced and 
quarterly infrared substation inspections were completed. Commercial availability closed for the month at 
81.9%.

November production finished at 39% below the SCPPA forecast due to a decrease in wind resource. No 
annual services were performed during the month and two turbines were inspected. Two pad-mounted 
transformer cooling fin leak repairs were also completed. Availability closed at 99.69% for the month.

December generation finished at 45%below the SCPPA forecast with generation decreasing approximately 
9,000 MWhs from the same month last year. Wind speeds were well below those seen during the same period 
last year. Eight turbines received new generators. Availability closed at 100% for the month. 

Production during the period was below historical averages, largely due to the repower project, numerous 
multi-day outages and various repairs and replacements. YTD NCF is 25%, which represents a 3% dip 
compared to the same period in 2022. 



Location: Klickitat County, WA

Type: Wind

COD: 30-Jun-10

Capacity (MWs): 50

Term: Permanent Ownership

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 90% 45.00

Glendale* 10% 5.00

100% 50

Operations Notes:

*Through a separate layoff agreement, the City of Glendale sold 100% of its entitlement to capacity and energy to LADWP.

LINDEN

 -14- 3/5/2024

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Production in October was approximately 40% below historical averages, and fell short of forecasted numbers 
by approximately 5,700 MWhs due to site and turbine issues. The substation’s 5-year service, maintenance, and 
testing were completed this period. During the service, Vestas completed five turbine annual converter services 
which leaves three turbines to be completed before year’s end. Vestas also completed two annual turbine 
services. Substation infrared inspections were completed following the maintenance and testing work, and no 
issues of concern were found.  Availability for the month closed at 92.56%.

Production in November increased slightly compared to the previous month but was still well below historical
averages. Generation missed forecasted numbers due to decreased wind resource. Annual services were 
performed on six turbines. WEC 27’s blade repairs which began last month were completed this period which 
completes the blade repairs. Bachmann pushed an update this period which was the last step in the Bachmann 
SCADA Project. Availability closed at 100%. 

December production was approximately 3,000 MWhs below historical averages, closing at 1,500 MWhs below 
the same month last year. Multiple low wind speed icing stops were placed on turbines this month. Vestas 
completed annual services on eight turbines. The semiannual pole line inspection was completed, and no issues 
of concern were found. Trending of known issues remains stable. Availability for the month closed at 99.98%. 

YTD production mirrored what was seen during 2022. NCF experienced no change compared to last year, 
finishing at 27%. 



Location: Milford, UT
Type: Wind
COD: 16-Nov-09

Capacity (MWs): 203.5
Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs
Burbank 5.00% 10.18
LADWP 92.50% 188.24

Pasadena 2.50% 5.09
100% 203.5

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

MILFORD I

 -15-

For the month of October, generation was 4,204 MWhs (38.1%) 
below the budgeted production. Year-to-date generation was 
54,000 MWhs (15.6%) below the year-to-date budgeted 
production. October project availability was 92%. GE turbine
major maintenance commenced. There were no curtailments 
and no generation-impacting balance of plant outages during the 
month. 

November generation finished at 26% below forecast due to a slight decrease in wind speed and lack of 
resource. There were no noted balance of plant activities or site outages during the month; however, turbine 
major maintenance that began in mid-October was completed by mid-November. Availability closed at 92.7%.

Generation finished at 51.4% below forecast in December, due to decreased wind speeds. There were no 
outages or curtailments during the month, but blade issues and faults resulted in availability dipping to 94.6%. 

YTD generation is about 18.5% below forecast. YTD NCF is 19%, which is equal to what it was during the same 
period last year.

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023



Location: Milford, UT

Type: Wind

COD: 2-May-11

Capacity (MWs): 102

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Glendale* 5% 5.10

LADWP 95% 96.90

100% 102

Operations Notes:

MILFORD II

 -16- 3/5/2024

0

10,000

20,000

30,000
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

October generation finished 28% below forecast due to faults and 
maintenance resulting in765 MWhs of lost energy at the site during 
the month. Generation was the second lowest seen during the 
month of October since the project began making deliveries to 
SCPPA. Availability closed at 93%.

*Through a separate layoff agreement, the City of Glendale sold 100% of its entitlement to capacity and 
energy to LADWP.

November generation closed at over 24% below the forecast with availability at 90.8%, due to below-forecast 
wind speeds and lack of wind resource. GE turbine major maintenance began mid-month and the site 
experienced 1,136 MWhs of lost energy during the month due to faults, maintenance, and blade issues.

December production finished at 49% below forecast, due to below budget wind speeds at the facility. 
Downtime was fairly minimal during the month, caused mostly by faults and maintenance and a blade bearing 
issue on a turbine resulting in it going offline for over a month. There were no curtailments observed but GE 
turbine major maintenance continued during the month, closing at 65% complete. Availability closed at 90.7%. 

YTD generation is approximately 15.4% below the forecast, resulting in a 1% dip in NCF, which closed at 18%.



Location: Lincoln, Guadalupe, Torrance Counties, NM

Type: Wind

COD: 22-Dec-21

Capacity (MWs): 331

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 331.00

100% 331

Operations Notes:

RED CLOUD

 -17- 3/5/2024

0

50,000

100,000

150,000

200,000
Generation (MWhs)

2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%
YTD Capacity Factor

2022 2023

October production was 24.7% below forecast due to lower-than-budgeted wind resource, lower-than-
budgeted turbine and Balance of Plant availability, and lower-than-budgeted wind speeds. Red Cloud 
experienced a planned TEP outage for work on the Vail-Winchester transmission line. This outage is 
scheduled to last nearly two months. Early in the outage, Red Cloud’s TEP capacity saw a 100% reduction 
in transmission availability. After approximately one month, the impact will be partially mitigated by 
rerouting facility energy along alternate APS system paths. Availability closed at 82.2%.

November generation at the facility climbed to only 9.9% below forecasted amounts due to continued
decreased wind resource and wind speeds. The facility experienced a continuation of the TEP outage 
which is scheduled to be completed in December. Additionally, two scheduled PNM outages occurred on 
the Western Spirit line. The first outage lasted two days, the second will continue into December, 
resulting in a 40% reduction in transmission availability. Availability closed at 91.9%.

December production closed at 6.9% below forecast despite increased wind resource/speeds and 
increased plant availability, which closed at 92% for the month. The second PNM outage from November 
ended mid-month as did the TEP outage on the Vail-Winchester line from October. Additional 
transmission outages did occur during the month but were successfully mitigated. 

YTD NCF closed at 40%, up from 35% during the same period last year.



Location: Lancaster, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 19-Aug-16

Capacity (MWs): 20

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

Azusa 17.5% 3.50

Pasadena 32.5% 6.50

Riverside 50% 10.00

100% 20

Operations Notes:

ANTELOPE BIG SKY RANCH

 -18- 3/5/2024

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Generation in November held at 12% below the forecast, mostly due to insolation and unplanned outages 
stemming from inverter faults and relay fuse replacements. Actual generation was approximately 300 MWhs 
below that seen during the same month in 2022, resulting in a 4% dip in NCF compared to November 2022. 

December production finished at approximately 600 MWhs lower than the previous month mostly due to 
lingering inverter issues and negative temperature impacts. Generation during the month was approximately 100 
MWhs below historical averages.

YTD production remained below historical averages, mostly due to poor weather observed during the spring and 
a tropical storm in August. NCF dipped 4%, closing at 26%, which is the lowest seen during any fourth period of 
the year since 2016. 

October production at the facility was 15% below the 
forecast, resulting in a net capacity factor of 28%, 5% lower 
than the same month in 2022. Temperature impacts and 
other inverter issues are the primary drivers for the second 
lowest generating October since the project began making 
deliveries to SCPPA in 2016. 



Location: Lancaster, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 20-Dec-2016 & 6-Dec-2016

Capacity (MWs): 55 (50 MWs DSR1 & 5 MWs DSR2)

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Riverside 45.5% 25.00

Vernon 45.5% 25.00

Azusa 9.1% 5.00

100% 55.00

Operations Notes:

ANTELOPE DSR 1 & 2

 -19- 3/5/2024

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Combined
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Combined 
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

October production was 4.86% below forecast for DSR I 
and 2.5% below for DSR II. Lingering operational issues 
and other performance impacts were the primary drivers 
for the reduction in combined generation, which 
remained only approximately 50 MWhs lower than 
during the same month in 2022.

November production was 14.43% below forecast for DSR I and 10.81% for DSR II. The facilities experienced a 
curtailment event during the month as well as negative insolation and other environmental impacts. Net 
capacity factor for the month finished at 26%- a 5% dip compared to November 2022. 

December generation finished approximately 200 MWhs less than the same month last year. Both facilities 
experienced negative insolation and environmental impacts, resulting in a 4% dip in NCF compared to the same 
period last year.

Combined YTD generation is approximately 20,000 MWhs below historical averages with YTD NCF dipping 4% 
compared to 2022 figures.



Location: Kern County, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 9-Dec-16

Capacity (MWs): 45

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Banning 17.78% 8.00

Colton 15.56% 7.00

Vernon 66.67% 30.00

100% 45.00

Operations Notes:

ASTORIA 2

 -20- 3/5/2024

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

October generation reached 69% of the forecasted amount. Multiple 
inverter outages caused 512 MWhs of lost energy at the facility, in 
addition to3,497 MWhs of lost energy due to twenty-five separate 
curtailment events during the month. 

November generation was 83% of the forecasted amount due to inverter outages that resulted in 562 MWhs of 
lost energy. There were four curtailment events observed during the month resulting in 12,245 MWhs of lost 
energy. The inverter involved in a thermal event back in September was returned online after being derated 
since the event. 

December generation finished at 86% of the forecasted amount. Forced inverter outages caused 418 MWhs of 
lost energy at the facility. There were six curtailment events that resulted in 38.90 MWhs of lost production 
during the month and no safety or environmental issues to report.

YTD production is approximately 11,000 MWhs above historical averages and was the second highest seen 
during the same period, mostly due to the increase in SCPPA’s capacity that began in January 2022. YTD NCF 
dipped 4% compared to 2022, closing at 31%. 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023



Location: Kern County, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 31-Dec-14

Capacity (MWs): 15

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Azusa 9% 1.35

Pasadena 17% 2.55

Riverside 74% 11.10

100% 15

Operations Notes:

COLUMBIA TWO

 -21- 3/5/2024

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

November production was the second lowest producing November since the project began making deliveries to 
SCPPA due to curtailment losses and weather/insolation impacts at the facility. NCF dipped 4% from 2022 
figures. 

December production decreased approximately 500 MWhs from the same month in 2022 no reported downtime 
and very minimal curtailment losses. Weather and insolation impacts resulted in 117.2 MWhs of lost energy at 
the facility. Monthly NCF dipped 4% compared to the same month last year. 

YTD generation finished at approximately 7,000 MWhs below historical averages , partly due to severe weather 
in the spring and summer months. YTD NCF fell 4% compared to 2022 figures, closing at 26%. 

October production fell just below historical averages since
the project began making deliveries to SCPPA in 2014, largely 
due to weather and curtailment impacts. NCF dipped 6% from 
2022 figures. 



Location: Boulder City, NV

Type: Solar

COD: 9-Apr-15

Capacity (MWs): 250

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Burbank 16% 40.00

LADWP 84% 210.00

100% 250

Operations Notes:

3/5/2024

COPPER MOUNTAIN 3

 -22-

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

The facility generated 8% above plan during the period with
insolation 3% above plan, generating a Q4 total of 130,393 
MWhs. Plant staff maintained a quarterly commercial 
availability of 99.99% with very minimal lost production, 
only about 12.4 MWhs during the period and no curtailment 
events.

There were no reportable safety incidents and no Notice of Violations during the period. Facility maintenance 
staff completed all monthly safety and fire inspections, site safety inspections, and weekly/monthly inspections 
and tasks per the annual maintenance plan.

Unplanned maintenance at the facility included replacing fans, contactors, subsystem and monitor boards and 
various fuses and relays.

YTD generation was just slightly below historical averages and approximately 20,000 MWhs lower than during
the same period in 2022. YTD NCF closed the period at 27%, a 1% negative change from 2022. 

SCPPA and the Project Participants have decided to conclude the Project's first scheduled purchase option with 
RWE, despite delivering the CMS3 Purchase Option Tentative Exercise Notice on October 10, 2023. SCPPA and 
the Participants may choose to pursue subsequent purchase options as outlined in the project's PPA.



Location: Riverside County, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 17-Dec-20

Capacity (MWs): 70

Term: 25 years 

Participants: % MWs

Anaheim 51.43% 36

Burbank 31.43% 22

Vernon 17.14% 12

100% 70

Operations Notes:

Desert Harvest II

 -23- 3/5/2024

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

Desert Harvest II 
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Desert Harvest II
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

October generation fell 50.6% below the forecasted amount due to inverter issues, the replacement of 50 
battery modules under warranty but not deliverable until January 2024, and 1,177 MWhs of curtailment. 
Monthly substation inspections and MET station preventative maintenance took place. Monthly production
was approximately 4,000 MWhs lower than the same month in 2022. 

November generation fell to 44.3% below forecast due to continuing inverter issues, battery modules 
awaiting replacement, and a single curtailment event resulting in 13.65 MWhs of lost energy. Annual 
maintenance outages began at the site during the month and monthly production was approximately 5,500
MWhs below the same month last year.

December closed the period at 40.8% below-forecast production stemming from the inverter issues, battery 
modules awaiting replacement, and various equipment faults on PE inverters. Monthly generation was 2,500 
MWhs below the same month in 2022.

The facility reached a YTD NCF of 21%, which represents an 7% dip from 2022. Currently the project is 
performing at about 55% of the Contract Quantity, as defined in the PPA, and is in danger of incurring a GEP 
Shortfall under Section 9.1 of the Agreement. EDF, the Project's operator, has indicated they intend to cure 
the shortfall in 2024 to avoid paying damages to SCPPA.



Location: Rosamond, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 30-Apr-16

Capacity (MWs): 20

Term: 20 years

Participants: % MWs

Azusa 15% 3.00

Colton 15% 3.00

Riverside 70% 14.00

100% 20.00

Operations Notes:

KINGBIRD B

 -24- 3/5/2024

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Kingbird produced 4,020 MWhs of energy in October. There were 
55.72 MWhs of lost energy caused by soiling but the facility still 
produced 1% above the forecast. Effective availability was 
96.72%.

In November, the facility produced 3,082 MWhs of energy, which is <1% below forecast. There were 45.44 
MWhs of lost energy due to soiling and 540 MWhs lost due to operational issues outside of management 
control. There were no other outages or curtailments during the month. Effective availability closed at over 95%.

December generation at the facility was 2,326 MWhs, which is very close to historical averages and 
approximately 125 MWhs below the same month in 2022. Actual production was <1% the monthly forecast. 
There were 13.68 MWhs of lost energy during the month due to soiling. Effective availability closed at 93.49%.

YTD period generation finished on par with historical averages but was the lowest generating Q4 since the
project began making deliveries to SCPPA. YTD NCF dipped to 32% from 34% in 2022. 



Location: Kern County, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 11-Jul-16

Capacity (MWs): 105

Term: 25 years 

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 105

100% 105

Operations Notes:

SPRINGBOK I

 -25- 3/5/2024

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

Springbok I 
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Springbok I
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Springbok I's YTD production was approximately
16,000 MWhs lower than during the same period 
the previous year, resulting in a 1% decrease in NCF. 

The facility experienced no corrective or scheduled maintenance issues, as well as no SCADA or 
inverter issues during the period. There were also no curtailments during the period. Actual 
generation figures surpassed the contractually guaranteed quantities by over 78,800 MWhs YTD. YTD 
facility availability closed at 98.0%. 



Location: Kern County, CA

Type: Solar

COD:  6-Sep-16

Capacity (MWs): 150

Term:  27 years 

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 150

100% 150

Operations Notes:

SPRINGBOK II

 -26- 3/5/2024

Springbok II produced the lowest YTD energy 
quantities since 2017 mostly due to severe weather 
in the area, including poor weather during the 
spring and summer seasons.

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

Springbok II 
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

Springbok II 
YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

There were no unplanned maintenance outages, site issues, or curtailment events experienced 
during the period. Period production finished approximately 91,995 MWhs above contractually 
guaranteed energy quantities. YTD NCF dipped 2% to 30% with YTD availability closing the year at 
over 98%. 



Location: Kern County, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 19-Jul-19

Capacity (MWs): 90

Term: 27 years 

Participants: % MWs

LADWP 100% 90

100% 90

Operations Notes:

SPRINGBOK III

 -27- 3/5/2024

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

Springbok III 
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

Springbok III produced 234,467 MWhs of energy 
through the fourth period, beating contractually 
guaranteed energy quantities by about 45,000 
MWhs and remaining just slightly below historical 
averages. 

YTD NCF finished at 30% which represents no
change from the same period last year. 

0

0

0

0

0

Springbok III 
Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023



Location: Lancaster, CA

Type: Solar

COD: 25-Jul-16

Capacity (MWs): 20

Term: 25 years

Participants: % MWs

Azusa 17.5% 3.5

Pasadena 32.5% 6.5

Riverside 50.0% 10.0

100% 20

Operations Notes:

SUMMER

 -28- 3/5/2024

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

Actual generation at the facility finished at 29.47% below 
expected energy for the month of October as a result of  
temperature and other performance impacts. Monthly 
production fell significantly and is the lowest producing 
October since the facility came online. NCF dipped 10%, 
closing at 24% for the month.

November generation was 12.43% below forecasted energy due to insolation, performance impacts, and 
temperature impacts at the facility. Monthly NCF finished the month at 24%, a 9% dip compared to 2022 
figures. 

December actual generation increased over 500 MWhs compared to the same month in 2022 but still fell 
below forecasted figures. Production, performance, and environmental impacts were the primary drivers for 
the below forecast generation, which represented the third lowest producing December since the facility 
began making deliveries to SCPPA.

YTD NCF decreased 8% compared to the same period last year, as a result of poor weather during the spring 
season and a tropical storm in August, closing at 23% for the period. 



Location: Loyalton, CA

Type: Biomass

COD: 20-Apr-18 (start of SCPPA deliveries)

Capacity (MWs): 12 (SCPPA Capacity)

Term: 5 years

Participants: % MWs

Anaheim 7% 0.81

IID 12% 1.49

LADWP 73% 8.80

Riverside 7% 0.84

100% 12

Operations Notes:

Loyalton

 -29- 3/5/2024

0

0

0

1

1

1

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

The facility has not operated since January 2020 and declared bankruptcy the following month. Shortly after, 
the facility was purchased by a new buyer, Sierra Valley Enterprises. SCPPA staff, along with the participants, 
are working with the new buyer and the Trustee on PPA takeover options, but no agreement has been reached 
as of the end of 2022. A settlement agreement process remains ongoing but is expected to be wrapped up by 
Q1 2024.  



Location: Weed, CA

Type: Biomass

COD: 16-Feb-21 (start of SCPPA deliveries)

Capacity (MWs): 11 (SCPPA Capacity)

Term: 5 years

Participants: % MWs

Anaheim 4% 0.49

IID 8% 0.91

LADWP 49% 5.42

SMUD 23% 2.58

MID 6% 0.61
Riverside 4% 0.49

TID 4% 0.49
100% 11

Operations Notes:

Roseburg

 -30- 3/5/2024

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

Generation (MWhs)

2021 2022 2023

0%

20%

40%

60%

YTD Capacity Factor

2021 2022 2023

After a deadly fire and a nearly three month outage in the summer and fall of 2022, generation at the Roseburg 
facility has increased dramatically since December 2022. Generation through the fourth period of 2023 totaled 
47,412 MWhs which is a nearly 19,000 MWhs increase compared to the same period in 2022. 

SCPPA did not receive any outage notifications during the fourth period of 2023 and as a result, YTD NCF 
increased to 49%, which is a 19% increase compared to 2022. 



 

Page 1 of 7 

 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

1160 NICOLE COURT 

GLENDORA, CA 91740 

(626) 793-9364 – FAX: (626) 793-9461 

WWW.SCPPA.ORG 

 

 

MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE OF  
SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

  

The meeting of the Finance Committee was held on February 5, 2024, at the SCPPA Glendora Training Center  
and by teleconference from Imperial Irrigation District. The meeting commenced at 10:30 A.M. and adjourned at 
11:35 A.M.  

Prior to proceeding with the agenda, the Committee conducted a vote in accordance with the Brown Act to approve 
a teleconference format for the meeting. This decision was prompted by the California Governor's declaration of a 
State of Emergency due to severe weather conditions, resulting in hazardous travel conditions and strong advisories 
against it by state and local officials. Prioritizing safety, many of the Committee Members opted for remote 
participation. Under the Brown Act, when a State of Emergency has been proclaimed, a meeting can be conducted 
via teleconference if (1) the meeting has been noticed in a format that will allow the public to participate remotely 
and (2) the Committee determines by majority vote that meeting in person would present imminent risks to the 
health or safety of attendees. The meeting was noticed in a format that allowed for the public to participate remotely. 
The Committee voted on and determined that meeting in person would indeed present imminent risks to the health 
and safety of attendees and that a teleconference format would be appropriate. 
 

Moved By:  Belen Valenzuela  
Seconded By: Richard Corbi  

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X      

Azusa X     

Banning X      

Burbank X     

Colton X   

 

Glendale 
 

   X  

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      

Riverside X     

Vernon X      



 

Page 2 of 7 
 

 
Committee members participating were: Brian Beelner (Anaheim-Teleconference); Daniel Smith (Azusa); 
Jim Steffens (Banning-Teleconference); Joseph Lillio (Burbank-Teleconference) Bernie De La Torre (Colton-
Teleconference); David Davis (Glendale-Teleconference); Belen Valenzuela (IID-Teleconference); John Equina 
(LADWP-Teleconference); Lynne Chaimowitz (Pasadena-Teleconference); Kristina Bernal (Riverside-
Teleconference); and Richard Corbi (Vernon-Teleconference) 
 
Others attendees were: Stela Kalomian (Burbank-Teleconference); Herman Leung and Huitzilo Arriaga 
(Pasadena-Teleconference); Victor Hsu (Norton Rose Fulbright); Mike Berwanger, George Hu, and Louise 
Houghton (PFM Financial Advisors-Teleconference); Grace Mao, Houbert Yousef, and Francisco Olivares-
Ortiz (LADWP/SCPPA-Teleconference); Aileen Ma, Charles Guss, Christine Godinez, and Troy Cook 
(SCPPA) 
 
1. Opportunity for the Public to Address the Committee 

Mr. Lillio (Committee Vice-Chair) invited any members of the public to provide comments. No public 
comments were made. 

2. Committee Chair and Vice Chair 

Mr. Lillio conducted the election for a new Committee Chair to serve from March 2024 to December 31, 
2025. Mr. Lillio opened the nominations and nominated Lynne Chaimowitz for the position. Ms. 
Valenzuela nominated Richard Corbi for the position. Mr. Lillio closed the nominations. Roll call votes 
were taken in the order of the nominations.  

Roll call vote for the nomination of Lynne Chaimowitz: 

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X     

Azusa  X   

Banning  X    

Burbank X    

Colton  X  

 

Glendale X     

IID  X    

LADWP  X    

Pasadena X     

Riverside X    

Vernon  X    
  

Roll call vote for the nomination of Richard Corbi: 



 

Page 3 of 7 
 

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim  X     

Azusa X     

Banning X      

Burbank 
 

X    

Colton X   

 

Glendale X      

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      

Riverside  X    

Vernon X      
 

Based on the roll call votes, Mr. Corbi was elected to the position of Committee Chair to serve from March 
2024 to December 31, 2025.  As Mr. Lillio is remaining in his position as Committee Vice Chair, no 
nominations were held for Committee Vice Chair. 

3. Consent Calendar 

Mr. Lillio presented the Consent Calendar to the Committee for consideration. The Committee 
recommended forwarding the report to the Board of Directors (Board) for receipt and filing.  

A. Minutes of the January 8, 2024 Finance Committee meeting 
 

Moved By:  Belen Valenzuela 
Seconded By: Richard Corbi 

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X      

Azusa X     

Banning X      

Burbank X     

Colton X   

 

Glendale X      

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      



 

Page 4 of 7 
 

Riverside X     

Vernon X      
 
4. Investment Reports 

 
Ms. Mao presented the Monthly and Quarterly Investment Reports for the period ended December 31, 
2023, to the Committee for review and consideration. The Committee recommended forwarding the 
reports to the Board for receipt and filing.  

Moved By:  Jim Steffens 
Seconded By: Belen Valenzuela   

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X      

Azusa X     

Banning X      

Burbank X     

Colton X   

 

Glendale X      

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      

Riverside X     

Vernon X      
 

5. Administrative & General Expense (A&G) Budget Comparison Report 
 
Mr. Cook presented the A&G Budget Comparison Report for the quarter ended December 31, 2023, to 
the Committee for review and consideration. The Committee recommended forwarding the report to the 
Board for receipt and filing.  

Moved By:  Belen Valenzuela  
Seconded By: Kristina Bernal  

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X      

Azusa X     

Banning X      



 

Page 5 of 7 
 

Burbank X     

Colton X   

 

Glendale X      

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      

Riverside X     

Vernon X      
 

6. Fiscal year 2024-25 Budget Timeline 
 
Mr. Cook presented the timeline for the fiscal year 2024-25 budget process. Mr. Beelner requested an 
update on Cost of Living Adjustments (COLA). Ms. Ma indicated that SCPPA is gathering COLA 
information from Members and will share that information at the April Finance Committee Meeting. Ms. 
Ma requested that Members provide SCPPA with COLA information by February 12 th.  The Finance 
Committee requested that SCPPA consider moving up the SCPPA Budget timeline to allow Members 
sufficient time to have budgetary information to prepare their utility budgets. Ms. Ma stated that SCPPA 
can move up the preliminary budget discussions, but for project budgets, the budget is to be approved 
no less than 30 days and no more than 45 days prior to the beginning of the Fiscal Year. Mr. Guss added 
that for project budgets, SCPPA can provide 10-year forecasts and can provide information as SCPPA 
receives it, with a caveat that the budget will not have been approved by the Board. Next year, SCPPA 
will endeavor to get information to Members at the beginning of March to the extent the information is 
available to SCPPA.  
 

7. Annual Debt Transparency Reports 
 
Mr. Hsu (Norton Rose Fulbright) provided the Committee with an update on the filing of the Annual Debt 
Transparency Reports with the California Debt and Investment Advisory Commission for the period 
ended June 30, 2023. All required reports were timely filed in January 2024.  
 

8. Energy Prepay 
 
Mr. Beelner provided the Committee with a status update on the Energy Prepay transaction.  Anaheim 
is hoping to take the transaction to its Board in March and to its City Council in April, with SCPPA 
consideration to follow. 
 

9. Linden Wind Energy Project Refunding Revenue Bonds 
 
Ms. Houghton (PFM Financial Advisors) provided the Committee with an update on the refunding of the 
Linden Wind Energy Project, Revenue Bonds, 2010 Series B (Taxable Build America Bonds) and the 
Linden Wind Energy Project, Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2020 Series A.  
 
 
 



 

Page 6 of 7 
 

10. Magnolia Power Project Basis Swaps 
 
Mr. Berwanger (PFM Financial Advisors) provided the Committee with an update on the Magnolia Power 
Project basis swaps. It was highlighted that SCPPA suspended the Royal Bank of Canada basis swap 
until 7/1/2026. However, Barclays Bank PLC’s (Barclays) internal policies do not allow the use of Fallback 
Secured Overnight Financing Rate (SOFR) when amending legacy London Interbank Offered Rate 
(LIBOR) indexed swaps, hindering SCPPA’s ability to suspend the basis swap with Barclays. The 
Committee would like a detailed memo explaining the SOFR alternatives if SCPPA desires to suspend 
the Barclays basis swap, along with the pros and cons of the alternatives. The approved SCPPA Board 
Resolution provides flexibility for the Finance Committee to make a recommendation on the SOFR 
alternative to move forward with for the suspension.  
 

11. STS Renewal Project Revenue Bonds 
 
Ms. Houghton provided the Committee with an update on the STS Renewal Project financing  and on the 
issuance of the second tranche of revenue bonds for the project. The Committee would like to see a 
schedule that outlines each Member’s future debt service obligation. The Committee recommended a 
resolution to the Board authorizing the preparation of all necessary documents for the issuance of the 
revenue bonds. Project Vote with LADWP, Burbank, and Glendale as the project participants.  

Moved By:  Dave Davis   
Seconded By: Lynne Chaimowitz  

The following roll call vote was taken: 

  Yes No 
Present, Not 

Voting Absent 

Anaheim X      

Azusa X     

Banning X      

Burbank X     

Colton X   

 

Glendale X      

IID X      

LADWP X      

Pasadena X      

Riverside X     

Vernon X      
 
 

12. Market and Variable Rate Demand Obligation (VRDO) Update 
 
Ms. Houghton provided the Committee with a market update and VRDO status report.  
 



 

Page 7 of 7 
 

13. Unsolicited Proposals 
 
Ms. Houghton provided the Committee with a summary of the unsolicited proposals that have been 
received from investment bankers.  
 

14. Future Agenda Topics 
 
The Committee members were given the opportunity to suggest topics for future Committee meetings; 
no new topics were suggested. Mr. Beelner inquired about a prior request for a report regarding SCPPA’s 
unfunded PERS liability. Ms. Ma stated that SCPPA is targeting to present that report at the March 
Finance Committee Meeting. 
 

_____________________________________________________________________ 

THE NEXT REGULARLY SCHEDULED 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING WILL BE MARCH 4, 2024. 

 
 



ANAHEIM • AZUSA • BANNING • BURBANK • CERRITOS • COLTON • GLENDALE • IID• LOS ANGELES • PASADENA • RIVERSIDE • VERNON 

 

Southern California Public Power Authority 
1160 Nicole Court  
Glendora, CA 91740 
(626) 793-9364 

 

The Members of Southern California Public Power Authority work together to power sustainable communities. 

 
 

February 28, 2024 
  
Mr. Michael Webster 
Executive Director 
Southern California Public Power Authority 
1160 Nicole Court 
Glendora, California 91740 
 
Dear Mr. Webster: 
 
Enclosed is the January 2024 Investment Report for the Palo Verde, Southern Transmission System, Southern Transmission 
System Renewal, San Juan, Magnolia Power, Natural Gas, Natural Gas Prepaid, Mead-Adelanto, Mead-Phoenix, Don A. 
Campbell/Wild Rose Geothermal, Don A. Campbell 2  Geothermal, Canyon Power, Pebble Springs Wind, Tieton Hydropower, 
MWD Hydro, Linden Wind, Milford Wind I, Milford Wind II, Windy Point/Flats, Ameresco, Apex Power, Copper Mountain 
Solar 3, Columbia 2 Solar, Heber 1 Geothermal, Ormat No. Nevada Geothermal, Ormesa Geothermal, ARP – Loyalton Biomass, 
Springbok 1 Solar, Springbok 2 Solar, Springbok 3 Solar, Kingbird Solar, Summer Solar, Astoria 2 Solar, Antelope Big Sky 
Ranch, Antelope DSR 1, Antelope DSR 2, Puente Hills Landfill Gas, Whitegrass No. 1 Geothermal, Star Peak Geothermal, Desert 
Harvest II, Roseburg Biomass, Red Cloud Wind, Coso Geothermal, Mammoth Casa Diablo IV, and Daggett Solar Power 2 
Projects; and for the Project Stabilization, San Juan Mine Reclamation Trust, San Juan Decommissioning Trust, and the SCPPA 
Decommissioning Trust Funds. The Portfolios for the Projects and Funds included in the Investment Report are in compliance 
with the SCPPA Investment Policy. 
 
During the month of January, the Investment Group coordinated variable debt service payments of $525,812 for the Magnolia 
Power and Canyon Power Projects. Net swap payments of $2.7 million were received in accordance with the Interest Swap 
agreements for the Canyon Power, Magnolia Power and Natural Gas Prepaid Projects. On January 2, fixed interest payments of 
$38.7 million were made on various bond issues for Southern Transmission System, Southern Transmission System Renewal, 
Magnolia, Mead-Adelanto, Mead-Phoenix, Natural Gas, Canyon Power, Linden Wind, Tieton Hydropower, Windy Point/Flats, 
Milford Wind I, Milford Wind II, and Apex Power Projects. The net commodity swap receipt for the Natural Gas Prepaid Project 
was $472,513. 
 
$197.9 million of cash and maturities were invested in the various SCPPA project trust funds.  Assets managed by the Investment 
Group for these funds had a market value of $1.2 billion as of January 31, 2024 with an average yield of 4.77%. Total interest 
earned on the project funds for the month was $5.46 million and year to date was $32.5 million. The escrow funds had a market 
value of $40.5 million with an average yield of 5.562%. Total interest earned on the escrow funds year to date was $1.4 million. 
 
Based upon anticipated expenditures for each Project and required receipts from each Participant, SCPPA believes that it will be 
able to meet all of its expenditure requirements for the next six months. 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 

          GRACE MAO 
                     Manager of Finance 

        Los Angeles Department of Water & Power 



Monthly Investment Report
January 31, 2024

Projects Portfolio Yield Investment Cost Carrying Value Market Value Portfolio Life2 Cost of Capital3 

Palo Verde 5.11% 38,964,022 39,213,143 39,158,880 0.21                N/A

San Juan 5.36% 1,383,372 1,383,805 1,383,707 0.16                N/A

Magnolia 5.27% 88,706,073 89,372,288 89,331,411 0.23                3.29%

STS 4.82% 22,674,982 22,755,596 22,695,173 0.35                3.59%

STS Renewal 5.17% 422,994,026 429,532,830 429,513,803 0.43                N/A

Mead-Phoenix 5.35% 3,905,205 3,912,481 3,912,668 0.08                2.23%

Mead-Adelanto 5.39% 4,086,611 4,105,699 4,106,080 0.14                2.21%

Natural Gas 5.26% 47,761,097 47,800,022 47,794,422 0.32                6.00%

Natural Gas Prepaid1
5.12% 19,421,952 19,422,790 19,422,975 9.45                5.07%

Canyon Power 5.38% 17,110,791 17,191,503 17,189,433 0.28                2.61%

Apex Power Project 5.39% 39,284,678 39,506,885 39,508,585 0.27                4.24%

SCPPA Decomm Trust Fund 3.18% 190,438,581 190,581,667 186,092,866 1.33                N/A

Project Stabilization Fund 4.74% 132,148,534 132,617,756 132,042,408 0.45                N/A

Tieton 5.31% 3,956,179 3,964,550 3,964,478 0.25                4.91%

Linden Wind 5.35% 4,084,578 4,087,618 4,087,208 0.10                4.48%

Milford Wind 1 5.44% 18,722,241 18,845,000 18,845,706 0.19                5.04%

Milford Wind 2 5.39% 7,472,611 7,509,982 7,509,359 0.22                5.31%

Windy Point Flats 5.35% 16,766,981 16,807,247 16,805,836 0.15                5.03%

Pwr Purchase Agreements Comb 4.42% 114,856,898 115,451,511 115,448,032 0.07                N/A

San Juan Reclaim Trust Fund 4.56% 21,311,680 21,392,699 21,274,492 0.37                N/A

San Juan Decomm Trust Fund 5.19% 4,856,762 4,890,295 4,888,508 0.32                N/A
 
1 Weighted average remaining portfolio life for NG Prepaid includes GICs with AGL. 
2 In years
3 Cost of capital as of March 31, 2019 as provided by PFM.             

   

Tenor

I25 Ask YTM US 
Treasury Actives 

Curve 1/31/24

I25 Ask YTM US 
Treasury Actives 

Curve 1/31/23
I25 Ask YTM  (Change) 

1/31/24-1/31/23
1M 5.358 4.507 85.10
2M 5.370 4.586 78.30
3M 5.360 4.642 71.80
6M 5.194 4.796 39.80
1Y 4.707 4.654 5.30
2Y 4.207 4.201 0.60
3Y 3.982 3.900 8.30
5Y 3.835 3.617 21.80

  U.S. Treasury



 

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY 

1160 NICOLE COURT 

GLENDORA, CA 91740 

(626) 793-9364 – FAX: (626) 793-9461 

WWW.SCPPA.ORG 

MEMO 

 
To: SCPPA Finance Committee  
 
From: Aileen Ma, Chief Financial & Administrative Officer 
 
Date: March 4, 2024  
 
Re: FY 2023-24 Administrative & General (A&G) Expense Budget to Actual Comparison Report – January 2024 
  

As of January 31, 2024, total A&G expenditures were $5,302,630 which is $654,687 or 11.0% under the year-to-date 
budget. 

Total Indirect A&G expenditures were $2,838,861 which is $391,888 or 12.1% under budget. The under budget was 
primarily due to: 

• Savings in meeting expenses due to lower than expected number of Member staff attending Working Group 
meetings in person versus virtually.  

• Savings in staff travel for meetings, conferences, and training. 

• Timing of expenditures and invoices from vendors and consultants.  

Total Direct A&G expenditures were $2,463,769 which is $262,799 or 9.6% under budget. The under budget was 
primarily due to the timing of expenditures for legal and consulting services and savings in agent billable costs because 
of personnel vacancy.  

  



Southern California Public Power Authority 

FY 2023-24 Adminstrative & General (A&G) Expense Budget to Actual 

January 31, 2024

ANNUAL YTD YTD Under /

BUDGET BUDGET ACTUAL (Over) %

FY 2023-2024 01/31/2024 01/31/2024 Budget Variance

Salaries 2,907,600$           1,696,100$           1,603,024$               93,076$             5.5%

Employee Benefits 742,600                487,325                432,436                    54,889               11.3%

Office Building Costs 180,400                86,150                   83,872                      2,278                 2.6%

Office Equipment and IT 135,060                90,615                   76,604                      14,011               15.5%

Office Expenses 65,100                   37,975                   22,619                      15,356               40.4%

Insurance 150,370                131,370                130,384                    986                    0.8%

Meeting Expense 54,700                   31,910                   14,810                      17,100               53.6%

Travel and Conferences 55,500                   32,375                   15,359                      17,016               52.6%

Staff Training/Development 53,000                   30,915                   3,016                         27,899               90.2%

Memberships and Dues 23,730                   2,170                     1,171                         999                    46.0%

Subscriptions 19,210                   11,205                   11,484                      (279)                   -2.5%

Gov't Affairs (Sacramento Office) 175,550                95,283                   81,668                      13,615               14.3%

Legislative Advocacy 366,200                217,895                215,994                    1,901                 0.9%

Regulatory Advocacy 200,000                116,665                59,110                      57,555               49.3%

General Legal Services 130,000                75,835                   56,355                      19,480               25.7%

Auditing Services 4,800                     4,800                     4,800                         -                     0.0%

Consulting & Other Services 97,350                   56,785                   7,633                         49,152               86.6%

Financial Advisor 90,000                   52,500                   45,000                      7,500                 14.3%

Budget Contingency 136,280                -                         -                             -                     0.0%

Subtotal 5,587,450$           3,257,873$           2,865,339$              392,534$          12.0%

Glendora Project Accounting - Direct A&G (46,500)                 (27,125)                 (26,479)                     (646)                   2.4%

TOTAL INDIRECT A&G 5,540,950$           3,230,748$           2,838,861$              391,888$          12.1%

Outside Counsels 434,500$              253,460$              156,085$                  97,376$             38.4%

Auditing Services 351,200                351,200                351,200                    -                     0.0%

Consulting & Other Services 165,500                96,540                   16,002                      80,538               83.4%

Project Travel Costs 17,000                   9,915                     7,003                         2,912                 29.4%

WREGIS Fees 15,550                   9,070                     4,581                         4,489                 49.5%

Agent Billable Costs 2,911,700             1,698,492             1,641,266                 57,226               3.4%

Trustee Fees 305,600                178,267                158,654                    19,613               11.0%

Rating Agency Fees 129,500                102,500                102,500                    -                     0.0%

Subtotal 4,330,550$           2,699,444$           2,437,290$              262,153$          9.7%

Glendora Project Accounting 46,500                   27,125                   26,479                      646                    2.4%

TOTAL DIRECT A&G 4,377,050$           2,726,569$           2,463,769$              262,799$          9.6%

TOTAL A&G EXPENSES 9,918,000$       5,957,317$       5,302,630$           654,687$      11.0%



 

 

SCPPA MARCH BOARD MEETING 
PALO VERDE NUCLEAR GENERATING STATION 

STATUS REPORT 
 
Plant Operations - Following is the status of the plant as of February 15, 2024: 
 

• Unit 1 is operating at full power and is in its 96th day of continuous operation. 

• Unit 2 is operating at full power and is in its 256th day of continuous operation. 

• Unit 3 is operating at full power and is on its 196th day of continuous operation. 
 
Through January 2024, the year-to-date maximum dependable capacity factor of the 
station is as follows: 
 

 Capacity Factor 

Unit 1 100.2% 

Unit 2 99.8% 

Unit 3 99.2% 

Station 99.7% 

 
 
Budget: 
 
Through January 2024, the year-to-date cost report is summarized as follows: 
 
(In $millions) 
 

Year-to-Date Budget Actual Variance 

O&M 52.04 51.95 (0.10) 

Capital 12.15 13.50 1.35 

Fuel 12.10 8.61 (3.49) 

Total 76.29 74.06 (2.24) 

 
 
 
The year-end budget projection is as follows: 
 

Year-End Budget Forecast Variance 

O&M 724.00 724.00 0.00 

Capital 258.00 258.00 0.00 

Fuel 210.05 210.05 - 

Total 1,192.05 1,192.05 - 

 
 



 

 

Developments:  

• Brine Concentrate Management Initiative Update Management Initiative 
Update 

The city of Goodyear is requesting to supply brine concentrate to Palo Verde as 
early as summer 2024. Planned modifications to Palo Verde and Redhawk to 
address impacts will not be completed by summer 2024. Phase 1 revision involves 
approving the revision of the existing agreement to facilitate short-term and future 
work. Prior to placing the new tie in-service, a construction and operating agreement 
will be finalized in July 2024.  



Sean Kigerl 
(818) 238-3774
March 21, 2024

MAGNOLIA POWER PLANT 
OPERATIONS REPORT 

February 2024 

Reporting Period 

February 1-29, 2024 

Workforce Safety Statistics 

 There were zero (0) lost time accidents this month and zero (0) year-to-date (YTD).
 There were zero (0) reportable incidents in February and zero (0) YTD.

Plant Performance Information 

 Availability: 100% in February, 97.9% fiscal year-to-date (FYTD), and 100% YTD.
(A table showing monthly plant availability for the past fourteen months is attached.)

 Unit Capacity Factor (240 MW): 80.4% in February, 75.7% FYTD, and 84.2% YTD.
 Fired Factored Hours: 696.0 hours in February 2024.
 Plant Starts (5 starts/month allowed): Zero (0) starts used during February.
 Statistics: Details are provided on the attached monthly production report entitled

“Year-to-Date Summary of Statistics FY 2023-24 & CY 2024”.

Plant Outage Summary and Other Actions Taken by Operating Agent  

 There were no outages at MPP during the month of February 2024. A table entitled 
“Outage Summary” is attached it shows all the outages that have occurred over the 
past twelve (12) months. The “2024-2028 Scheduled Inspection Plan” is also attached 
showing the calendar for future planned outages at MPP.

 Preparations are underway for the upcoming planned outage. MPP will be shut down 
on March 15, 2024, to perform an offline water wash of the combustion turbine 
compressor, boiler inspection and balance of plant maintenance. MPP is scheduled to 
be restarted on March 21, 2024.

 There were no instances of stranded energy in February 2023 (a table showing 
stranded energy by month is attached). 



2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2023 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun FYTD YTD

MWH 90,631 87,895 73,952 67,533 82,141 84,689 103,171 86,488 676,500 189,658
MWH 56,269 56,580 49,211 49,713 52,441 51,752 58,944 52,629 427,539 111,573
MWH 146,900 144,475 123,163 117,246 134,583 136,441 162,115 139,116 1,104,040 301,231

MWH 5,328 5,293 4,611 5,051 5,092 4,826 5,286 4,779 40,266 10,065
MWH 6 7 359 7 6 330 7 6 728 13
MWH 141,573 139,182 118,552 112,195 129,490 131,615 156,829 134,337 1,063,775 291,166

% 79.3% 77.9% 68.6% 62.8% 74.9% 73.7% 87.8% 80.4% 75.7% 84.2%

BTU/KWh 11,966 12,051 12,376 13,519 12,229 11,797 11,348 11,874 12,082 11,588
BTU/KWh 7,412 7,431 7,531 7,792 7,464 7,350 7,228 7,384 7,436 7,300
BTU/KWh 7,691 7,714 7,824 8,143 7,758 7,619 7,472 7,646 7,718 7,552

Hours 744.0 744.0 720.0 744.0 720.0 744.0 744.0 696.0 5,856.0 1440.0
Hours 744.0 744.0 659.5 744.0 720.0 683.5 744.0 696.0 5,735.0 1440.0
Hours 33.6 95.3 60.5 4.9 0.1 12.7 8.6 4.0 219.5 12.5

% 100.0% 100.0% 91.6% 100.0% 100.0% 91.9% 100.0% 100.0% 97.9% 100.0%
Hours 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Hours 0.0 0.0 60.5 0.0 0.0 60.5 0.0 0.0 121.0 0.0
Hours 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0

% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%
Hours 0.0 0.0 60.5 0.0 0.0 60.5 0.0 0.0 121.0 0.0
Hours 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Hours 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Hours 744.0 744.0 659.5 744.0 720.0 683.5 744.0 696.0 5,735.0 1,440.0
Hours 12,684 11,940 11,281 10,537 9,817 9,133 8,389 7,693 - -

Estimated Date of Next Major Outage Jan 2025

DTH 1,084,506 1,059,216 915,235 912,961 1,004,543 999,045 1,170,829 1,026,952 8,173,287 2,197,781
DTH 4,312 14,388 12,349 605 4 3,783 1,012 227 36,680 1,239

MMSCF 4.1 13.7 11.8 0.6 0.0 3.6 1.0 0.2 35 1
MMSCF 550.3 536.6 524.8 524.2 524.2 520.6 519.7 519.4 - -

DTH 1,088,819 1,073,604 927,585 913,566 1,004,547 1,002,827 1,171,841 1,027,179 8,209,967 2,199,020
BTU/SCF 1,039 1,032 1,034 1,033 1,030 1,031 1,039 1,050 1,036 1,045

(FFH) From Peak Power

Gas BTU (HHV)

Duct Burner Fuel Remaining
Total Plant Usage

Total Factored Fired Hours 

Duct Burner
Duct Burner

(FFH) Before Next Inspection

FUEL USAGE AND QUALITY
Combustion Turbine

ENERGY

MAGNOLIA MONTHLY PRODUCTION REPORT
Year-to-Date Summary of Statistics

FY 2023-24 & CY 2024

AVAILABILITY

Combustion Turbine (Gross)
Steam Turbine
Plant Generation (Gross)

Plant Auxiliaries (Unit Aux.)
Plant Auxiliaries (Reserve)
Plant Generation (Net)
Capacity Factor (240 MW Net)

Total Plant (Net)

THERMAL EFFICIENCY
Combustion Turbine (Gross)
Total Plant (Gross)

Offline yet Available Hours

Forced Outage
Total Hours Offline
Forced Derated Hours

Hours in the Month
Plant Operating Hours
Duct Burner Operating Hours
Plant Availability

Forced Outage Hours
Planned Outage Hours



Magnolia Power Plant - Outage Summary

Outage Type Start Date/Time End Date/Time Hours 

None

Outage Type Start Date End Date Hours

PO March 24, 2023 March 30, 2023 132.2 CT borescope/boiler inspection
PO June 23, 2023 June 26, 2023 60.5 CT water wash
PO September 22, 2023 September 25, 2023 60.5 CT water wash
PO December 15, 2023 December 18, 2023 60.5 CT water wash

RS - Reserve Shutdown
PO - Planned Outage
FO - Forced Outage
OMC - Outside of Management Control

Cause

Comments

Summary of Outages During the Past Twelve Months

Outages During the Reporting Period February 1-29, 2024

Outage Type Legend



Magnolia Power Plant - Availability Summary Table

Monthly Quarterly Semi-Annually Annually
Jan-23
99.1%
Feb-23 Q1 '23

100.0% 93.5%
Mar-23
82.1% H1 '23
Apr-23 95.4%

100.0%
May-23 Q2 '23

100.0% 97.2%
Jun-23
91.6% Yr '23
Jul-23 96.3%

100.0%
Aug-23 Q3 '23

100.0% 97.3%
Sep-23
91.6% H2 '23
Oct-23 97.3%

100.0%
Nov-23 Q4 '23

100.0% 97.3%
Dec-23
91.9%
Jan-24

100.0%
Feb-24

100.0%



2024 2025 2026 2027 2028

(8,472 Hours) (7,380 Hours) (8,448 Hours) (8,448 Hours) (8,472 Hours)

INSPECTIONS

March 2024 February 2025 January 2026 February 2027 February 2028

Water Wash Offline 6:00 PM 3/15/2024 Offline 6:00 PM 2/28/2025 Offline 6:00 PM 1/23/2026 Offline 6:00 PM 2/5/2027 Offline 6:00 PM 2/4/2028

90 Day Intervals Online 6:00 AM 3/21/2024 Online 6:00 AM 4/21/2025 Online 6:00 AM 1/29/2026 Online 6:00 AM 2/11/2027 Online 6:00 AM 2/10/2028

Every 2,160 Hours

June 2024 July 2025 May 2026 May 2027 May 2028

Every 32,000 Hours Offline 6:00 PM 6/21/2024 Offline 6:00 PM 7/18/2025 Offline 6:00 PM 5/1/2026 Offline 6:00 PM 5/7/2027 Offline 6:00 PM 5/5/2028

Last HGP @ 81,095 Hrs Online 6:00 AM 6/24/2024 Online 6:00 AM 7/21/2025 Online 6:00 AM 5/04/2026 Online 6:00 AM 5/10/2027 Online 6:00 AM 5/8/2028

Major Inspection
Every 64,000 Hours

Last Major @ 112,229 Hrs September 2024 October 2025 July 2026 August 2027 August 2028

Offline 6:00 PM 9/20/2024 Offline 6:00 PM 10/17/2025 Offline 6:00 PM 07/31/2026 Offline 6:00 PM 8/6/2027 Offline 6:00 PM 8/4/2028

Upcoming Inspections Online 6:00 AM 9/23/2024 Online 6:00 AM 10/20/2025 Online 6:00 AM 08/03/2026 Online 6:00 AM 8/9/2027 Online 6:00 AM 8/7/2028

Minor Inspection

December 2024 November 2026 November 2027 November 2028

Offline 6:00 PM 12/13/2024 Offline 6:00 PM 11/06/2026 Offline 6:00 PM 11/5/2027 Offline 6:00 PM 11/3/2028

Online 6:00 AM 12/16/2024 Online 6:00 AM 11/09/2026 Online 6:00 AM 11/8/2027 Online 6:00 AM 11/6/2028

End Of Year Totals 143,576 Hours 150,956 Hours 159,404 Hours 167,852 Hours 176,324 Hours

CT Borescope/Boiler 

Inspection

Magnolia Power Project 

CT Rotor Replacement 

02/28/2025-04/21/2025

All future dates are estimates 

based on run hours and are 

subject to change.

Hot Gas Path / Minor 

Inspection

CT Borescope/Boiler 

Inspection

CT Borescope/Boiler 

Inspection

Minor Inspection/Rotor 

Rep./Boiler Inspection

CT Borescope/Boiler 

Inspection

Total Fired Hours      

PROJECTED ANNUALLY

As of Feb. 26th, 2024

2024-2028

Scheduled Inspection Plan 

with 32K Hardware 

Total Fired Time

Offline Water Wash

Hot Gas Path / Minor Inspection 

Major Inspection 

136,458.0 Hours

85

86

84

87

70

71

72

69

74

75

73 3

77

78

76

79

81

82

80

83



Month Participant Energy (MWh)
Jan-23 - -
Feb-23 - -
Mar-23 - -
Apr-23 - -
May-23 - -
Jun-23 - -
Jul-23 - -
Aug-23 Cerritos 2
Sep-23 - -
Oct-23 Cerritos 19
Nov-23 - -
Dec-23 - -
Jan-24 - -
Feb-24 - -

Stranded Energy Monthly Report



 

Memo 
 

 

TO: Southern California Public Power Authority 

FROM:  TFG 

RE:  Federal Legislative Report 

DATE: March  13, 2024 

 

February 2024 Federal Report 

This legislative report covers  activities related to appropriations, energy, and environment, as 
well as telecommunication and cybersecurity issues from February 1 through March 1, 2024  

Executive Summary  

Congressional Calendar. The House and Senate were in session for most of February.  

       

FY 24 Budget and Appropriations.  The dates for expiration of  both FY 2024 packages of 

appropriations bills have been extended into  early March. Also, on March 11th, President Biden 

will submit his FY 2025 budget request to Congress.      

Energy and Environment.  The US  Treasury Department continues to make progress in issuing 
final and proposed rules regarding implementation of the IRA clean energy tax credits. 

        Cybersecurity  and Telecommunications. Among other cybersecurity activities,  the Cybersecurity 

and Infrastructure Security Agency (CISA), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Federal 
Bureau of Investigation (FBI)  have published a fact sheet, Top Actions for Securing Water Systems, 
to aid water and wastewater systems sector stakeholders with reducing their cyber risk and 
improving resilience to cyberattacks.  Of note In the telecom space, a coalition of nine utility 
companies has filed a petition asking the FCC to reconsider the provision of its recently 
unanimously adopted WC docket 17-84 fourth report and order that requires pole owners to 
provide a copy of pole inspection reports to attaching entities.   

Budget and Appropriations  

President Joe Biden signed the “Extension of Continuing Appropriations and Other Matters Act, 

2024” into law (Public Law 118-40), extending government funding at enacted Fiscal Year (FY) 

2023 funding levels from March 1 to Friday, March 8, 2024, for several federal agencies and 

programs – including the Department of Energy --  and from March 8 to Friday, March 22, 2024, 

for others, including the department of Homeland Security.  On February 29, the House passed 

the Continuing Resolution (CR) by a vote of 320-99, followed by the Senate by a vote of 77-13. 

This provided Congress with additional time to continue negotiations on final FY 2024 spending 

https://www.cisa.gov/resources-tools/resources/top-cyber-actions-securing-water-systems
https://www.fcc.gov/ecfs/search/search-filings/results?q=%28submissiontype.description%3A%28%22OPPOSITION+TO+PETITION+FOR+RECONSIDERATION%22%29+AND+proceedings.name%3A%28%2217-84%22%29+AND+date_received%3A%5B2024-01-01+TO+2024-02-14%5D%29&ref=broadbandbreakfast.com
https://www.whitehouse.gov/briefing-room/legislation/2024/03/01/press-release-bill-signed-h-r-7463/
https://www.congress.gov/118/plaws/publ40/PLAW-118publ40.pdf
https://clerk.house.gov/Votes/202458
https://www.senate.gov/legislative/LIS/roll_call_votes/vote1182/vote_118_2_00067.htm


    
 

August 2023 Federal Legislative Report 2 

bills at the $1.59 trillion top-line funding level agreed to by House Speaker Mike Johnson (R-La.) 

and Senate Majority Leader Chuck Schumer (D-NY) in early January. 

Energy and Environment  

SCPPA Attends APPA Leg Rally/DC Fly-In 

Senior staff of SCPPA, along with representatives from a majority of SCPPA member agencies,  

attended the annual APPA legislative rally. At the rally, SCPPA members participated in meetings 

with senior Treasury officials as well as sessions that focused on, among other matters, FERC 

procedures, as well participated in internal APPA meetings in which several policy resolutions 

were adopted.  In addition,  the SCPPA delegation participated in over a dozen meetings with 

congressional staff and senior agency officials. In those meetings, SCPPA members raised issues 

of concern and priority for our members, including: encouraging House and Senate staff and 

members to urge the Biden Administration to continue implementation of Various “rules of the 

road” regarding various clean energy credits in a manner that works most effectively for SCPPA 

and other POUs (e.g. addressing the challenges of domestic content rules related to direct pay);  

the urgent need to address the transformer shortage – especially due to the impact on meeting 

affordable housing goals; and, importance of identifying a long term nuclear waste disposal site 

among other issues.                 

SCPPA Sends letter to Congress Urging Transformer Funding 

SCPPA sent a letter to House and Senate Congressional leadership  expressing  our strong 

support for the Senate’s FY 2024 Energy and Water Development Appropriations Bill. The letter 

highlighted strong support of the funding levels regarding distributive transformers.  In 

particular, the Senate version of the FY 2024 Energy and Water Development Appropriations Bill 

would provide critical funding and direction to the Department of Energy (DOE) to enhance the 

domestic supply chain for the manufacture of distribution transformers. This measure is 

necessary to protect the ability of SCPPA Members to maintain grid reliability and meet system 

needs, especially as transformer demand grows due to more frequent extreme weather events, 

increased electrification, and more aggressive housing development. 

The letter goes on to highlight  that  the bill would provide critical funding and direction to DOE 

to enhance the domestic supply chain for the manufacture of distribution transformers. This is 

necessary to protect the ability of SCPPA Members to maintain grid reliability and meet system 

needs, especially as transformer demand grows due to more frequent extreme weather events, 

increased electrification, and more aggressive housing development. 

The letter was also shared with key congressional staff during the APPA Legislative Rally/DC Fly-

In.    

Treasury Accelerating Clean Energy Tax Credit Rules  

Recently, Treasury issued a final rule regarding  the use of direct/elective pay credits.  The rule is 

primarily focused on the process and timeline for claiming and receiving an elective payment of 



    
 

August 2023 Federal Legislative Report 3 

energy tax credits. Importantly,  however, it does not provide guidance for meeting domestic 

content requirements for claiming  the payment, nor does it discuss the exceptions to those 

requirements.  

While Treasury issued draft proposed rules for the domestic content bonus credit in 2023, it has 

yet  to clarify whether this bonus credit domestic content requirements would also apply for 

purposes of qualifying for elective payment. Likewise, while Treasury and IRS have sought 

comments on exceptions to the domestic content requirements for elective payment, they have 

not issued any guidance – draft or otherwise. 

A positive development: the final rule addresses the problem faced by POUs operating on a fiscal 

year, but that placed energy property – including commercial electric vehicles – into service early 

in  calendar year 2023. Because of the mechanics of elective payment’s effective date, such 

entities were at risk of being unable to claim credit for such property. Under the final rule, an 

entity that had not previously filed an income tax return, may choose whether to file its first 

Form 990-T based upon either a calendar or a fiscal year. This should allow affected POUs that 

placed in service applicable energy credit property early in 2023 to file Form 990-T based on a 

calendar year and make an elective payment election with respect to the applicable credit 

property.  

This latest action is part of the Biden administration’s continued efforts to  make an aggressive 

push to finalize rules governing how clean energy tax credits can be monetized under the 

Inflation Reduction Act. The Treasury Department is also expected to begin the process of setting 

the rules for broad, technology-neutral credits that will take effect in 2025 (e.g. Law calls for PTC 

and ITC to transition to technology neutral by 2026).  

Treasury is also planning to provide further guidance on other tax credits in the coming months, 

including for the alternative fuel vehicle refueling credit designed assist in catalyze the 

development of a network of electric vehicle chargers as well as make initial awards and issue a 

notice establishing the second round of allocations for the advanced energy project tax credit. 

The credit is aimed at expanding clean energy into traditionally coal-reliant communities. 

Treasury also intends to announce information on this year’s program under the low income 

communities bonus tax credit  prior to the opening of the second year of applications. 

In addition, Treasury  also recently issued a Notice of Proposed Rulemaking (NPRM) providing 

additional clarity for owners seeking elective payment for their portion of co-owned energy 

projects.   

Finally, there is no specific timeline for finalizing guidance on the clean hydrogen tax credit., 

which did not address uncertainties surrounding  questions on whether there will be pathways 

for existing, legacy sources like nuclear and open questions surrounding the use of renewable 

natural gas.  



    
 

August 2023 Federal Legislative Report 4 

Telecommunications and Cybersecurity  

Telecommunications  
 

Lower 3 GHz Spectrum Band Study: House communications and technology subcommittee 

Chairman Bob Latta (R-OH) and ranking member Doris Matsui (D-CA) wrote the Commerce and 

Defense departments on February 28 to get details on how they will co-lead a study of the 3.1-

3.45 gigahertz band pursuant to the national spectrum strategy (NSS) released last year. They 

asked how the agencies will co-lead the lower 3 GHz band study; how the studies will be done; 

how the agencies will “ensure all opportunities for commercial use in the Lower 3 GHz are fully 

considered and all relevant stakeholders have the ability to participate?”; how the agencies will 

“ensure a consistent and evidence-based process is used to establish methodology, assumptions, 

and parameters for studies in the Lower 3GHz?”; and how the agencies will “accommodate the 

exchange of classified information with the private sector where necessary?” 

 

6 GHz Comment Period:  Comments are due March 27 and replies April 26 in ET docket 18–295 

and GN docket 17–183 on a second further notice of proposed rulemaking adopted last October 

seeking views on whether the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) should expand use of 

very low power (VLP) devices to an additional 350 megahertz of the 6 gigahertz band. The further 

notice was adopted along with a second report and order that opened 850 MHz of the 6 GHz 

band to VLP devices. 

 

Separately, the FCC’s Office of Engineering and Technology approved the applications of seven 

entities to operate automated frequency coordination (AFC) systems in the 6 GHz band. The 

following entities received AFC system approval, subject to conditions: Qualcomm, Inc., 

Federated Wireless, Inc., Sony Group Corp., Comsearch, the Wi-Fi Alliance Services Corp. (on 

behalf of the Wi-Fi Alliance), the Wireless Broadband Alliance, Inc. (WBA), and Broadcom, Inc. 

 

Pole Inspection Report:  A coalition of nine utility companies has filed a petition asking the FCC 

to reconsider the provision of its recently unanimously adopted WC docket 17-84 fourth report 

and order that requires pole owners to provide a copy of pole inspection reports to attaching 

entities.  

 

The provision requires pole owners to provide attachers, upon request, with their most recent 

cyclical pole assessment reports or any intervening periodic pole inspection reports for poles 

covered by an attachment application. The companies said the FCC should reconsider the 

provision because the agency did not raise the requirement in its second further notice of 

proposed rulemaking. 

 

House AI Task Force: House Speaker Mike Johnson (R-LA) and Minority Leader Hakeem Jeffries 

(D-NY) announced the establishment of a bipartisan Task Force on Artificial Intelligence (AI) “to 

explore how Congress can ensure America continues to lead the world in AI innovation while 

considering guardrails that may be appropriate to safeguard the nation against current and 

emerging threats.” The task force will work to develop a report with guiding principles, 

https://latta.house.gov/news/documentsingle.aspx?DocumentID=404294
https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2024/02/26/2023-28620/unlicensed-use-of-the-6-ghz-band-and-expanding-flexible-use-in-mid-band-spectrum-between-37-and-24
https://www.fcc.gov/ecfs/search/search-filings/results?q=%28submissiontype.description%3A%28%22OPPOSITION+TO+PETITION+FOR+RECONSIDERATION%22%29+AND+proceedings.name%3A%28%2217-84%22%29+AND+date_received%3A%5B2024-01-01+TO+2024-02-14%5D%29&ref=broadbandbreakfast.com
https://democraticleader.house.gov/media/press-releases/house-launches-bipartisan-task-force-artificial-intelligence#:~:text=WASHINGTON%20%E2%80%94%20Speaker%20Mike%20Johnson%20and,be%20appropriate%20to%20safeguard%20the


    
 

August 2023 Federal Legislative Report 5 

recommendations, and bipartisan policy proposals developed with the committees of 

jurisdiction. 

 

ReConnect and BTA Grant Awards:  Agriculture Secretary Tom Vilsack and White House 

Domestic Policy Adviser Neera Tanden announced 216 federally funded broadband, water, and 

economic growth projects in rural communities, totaling $772.6 million in investments, including 

$51.7 million to expand access to high-speed internet for people in rural areas across the country 

through the ReConnect Program and the Broadband Technical Assistance Program. The high-

speed Internet awards will benefit communities in Alaska, California, Idaho, Kansas, Kentucky, 

Louisiana, Michigan, Mississippi, Nebraska, Nevada, North Carolina, Oregon, South Carolina, 

Texas, Virginia, Washington, and Wyoming. 

Cybersecurity  

Water System Cybersecurity Factsheet: the Cybersecurity and Infrastructure Security Agency 

(CISA), Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) and Federal Bureau of Investigation (FBI) 

published a fact sheet, Top Actions for Securing Water Systems, to aid water and wastewater 

systems sector stakeholders with reducing their cyber risk and improving resilience to 

cyberattacks. The fact sheet contains eight actions along with available resources and services to 

help organizations implement each action. The agencies said WWS executives, leaders, and IT 

security professionals should be familiar with the information in the fact sheet and ensure 

appropriate actions are taken. Those actions are:   

  

1. Use cyber hygiene services to reduce exposure of key assets to the public-facing 

internet.  

2. Conduct a cybersecurity assessment on a regular basis to understand and prioritize 

existing vulnerabilities.   

3. Require unique, strong, and complex passwords for all water systems, including 

connected infrastructure – DO NOT USE default passwords.   

4. Create an inventory of software and hardware assets, which will help your security 

team understand what needs to be protected.   

5. Develop and exercise cybersecurity incident response and recover plans so 

everyone understands roles, responsibilities and reporting requirements.   

6. Regularly backup OT/IT systems so you can recover to a known and safe state in 

the event of a compromise.   

7. Mitigate known vulnerabilities, especially known exploited vulnerabilities, and 

keep all systems up to date with patches and security updates.   

8. At a minimum, conduct annual cybersecurity awareness training to help all 

employees understand the importance of cybersecurity and how to prevent and 

respond to cyberattacks.   

 

Water System Cybersecurity Hearing: The House Energy and Commerce Committee 

Environment, Manufacturing, and Critical Materials Subcommittee held a hearing recently  titled 

“Ensuring the Cybersecurity of America’s Drinking Water Systems.” The hearing examined how to 

best safeguard the U.S. public water system from cybersecurity attacks and to mitigate future 

https://www.usda.gov/media/press-releases/2024/02/21/biden-harris-administration-announces-over-770-million-rural
https://www.cisa.gov/resources-tools/resources/top-cyber-actions-securing-water-systems
https://www.cisa.gov/known-exploited-vulnerabilities-catalog
https://energycommerce.house.gov/events/environment-manufacturing-and-critical-materials-subcommittee-hearing-ensuring-the-cybersecurity-of-america-s-drinking-water-systems


    
 

August 2023 Federal Legislative Report 6 

risks. Witnesses included representatives from the American Water Works Association and the 

National Rural Water Association, among others. For more information, please see TFG’s hearing 

summary.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://ferggrp.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/SCPPA/EXk6sjUZowZAkGtbW3wKIboBWD9UXsVLyZ7ETbrGk0_KkQ?e=xLAdxT
https://ferggrp.sharepoint.com/:b:/s/SCPPA/EXk6sjUZowZAkGtbW3wKIboBWD9UXsVLyZ7ETbrGk0_KkQ?e=xLAdxT


ANAHEIM.AZUSA.BAI\NIi\G.BURBANK.CERRITOS.COLTON.GLENIDALE.IID'LOSANIGELES'PASADENIA'RIVERSIDE'VERNON

SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY

1160 NICOLE COURT

GLENDOM, CA9174O

(626) 7e3-e364

WWW.SCPPA.ORG

MEMO

TO: SCPPA Board of Directors

FROM: MichaelS. Webster, Executive Director

DATE: Wednesday, March 13,2024

RE: Working Group Updates

WORKING GROUP SUMMARY

ASSET MANAGEMENT

The Asset Management Working Group last met on January 25. The next meeting is

scheduled for May 9,2024.

ASSISTANT GEN ERAL AAANAGER

The AGM Working Group last met on January 24.The next meeting witt be hetd on April 24,

2024.

CYBERSECURITY

The Cybersecurity Working Group (CWG) did not meet this month. The CWG meets on an

ad-hoc basis.

FINANCIAL INCENTIVES and RATES



The Financiat lncentives and Rates Working Group (FIRWG) met on February 20,2024, during

which they received a presentation from Eric Bett, Ph.D. of Apex Anatytics. Eric's

presentation focused on toad and bitt impacts of innovative residential pricing designs and

the different metrics he used to measure rate and program performance. The presentation

was we[[ received and ted to robust discussions on how these rate designs could be

imptemented in member service territories.

The next meeting is scheduted for March 19,2024.

KEY ACCOUNTS

This group meets on an ad hoc basis, and a future meeting is currentty not scheduted

LEGAL

The Legat Working Group last met on October 26,2023. The Legal Working Group witl meet

again on March 28,2024.

LEGISLATIVE

The Legistative Working Group (LWG) met on February 14 to discuss recentty introduced

federal legislation to detay the Department of Energy's authority to adopt distribution

transformer efficiency regulations. The LWG received a recap of the 2024 Pubtic Power

Capitot Day in Sacramento; updates on the state budget; and updates on state committee

hearings and potential state legislation for the 2024 session (the bitl introduction deadtine

was February 16). The LWG also discussed plans for the American Pubtic Power Association

(APPA) Legistative Ratty/SCPPA Fty-in (which took ptace from February26-28) and the March

19th joint POU meeting with Com. Gunda from the Catifornia Energy Commission (which

SCPPA is organizing and teading to continue its on-going dialogue between POUs and the

cEc).

The LWG met for its bi-monthty "check-in" on March 7th to discuss the growing state budget

deficiq bitts on pole attachments (AB 2221, Carritlo) and net energy metering (AB 2619,

Connotty); SCPPA's nine post-Capitol Day meetings with senior legislative energy staff and

staff of energy committee members; the proposed agenda for the March 19 Joint POU

Page 2



meeting with Com. Gunda; and a recap of the APPA Legistative Ratty/SCPPA Fty-in (which

consisted of over 15 SCPPA scheduted meetings).

The next LWG meeting witt be hetd on March 20.

MUTUAL ASSISTANCE

The Mutuat Assistance Sub-working Group (AMWG) met on March 5. The iMWG is

revisiting and updating both the Contact List and Equipment List for each Member. Both

tists witt benefit the entire IMWG in reaching out to other Member's point of contact in
requesting future mutual assistance.

The next lr AWG meeting witl take ptace on April 2.

NATURAL GAS

The Natural Gas Working Group last met virtuatty on January 23. The next working group

meeting is scheduted for Aprit 23,2024.

CUSTOMER PROGMMS

The Customer Programs Working Group (CPWG) met on March 6,2024. The group discussed

the SB1037 report and that att data needed to be submitted by March 9. Att SCPPA members

have submitted their data, and the report witt be submitted to the CEC at the end of March.

The group atso discussed the CMUA EE Potentiat Study RFP and setected members to

participate in the RFP review panel. Precision NRG gave a presentation to the group on their

apptiance exchange and recycting program.

The next meeting is scheduled for Aprit 3,2024.

REGULATORY

The Regutatory Working Group (RWG) met on February 14 and March 7.

Page 3



The RWG received updates on the Catifornia Energy Commission's (CEC) Power Source

Disctosure rulemaking; CEC grant programs; an upcoming March 19 meeting with CEC Vice

Chair Siva Gunda; the Catifornia Public Utitities Commission's (CPUC) rulemaking regarding

the Setf-Generation lncentive Program (SGIP); and the APPA Federal ratty.

The RWG also hosted guest presenters from the South Coast Air Quatity Management District

(SCAQMD) to discuss current and upcoming rutemakings regarding air quatity from stationary

sources and associated fees. Lastty, the RWG discussed approach and strategy for Cap-and-

Trade discussions with CARB.

The next RWG meeting witt be hetd on March 20.

RENEWABLES

The Renewables Working Group (ReWG) met on February 20. The ReWG discussed recent

updates concerning the ongoing nine devetoping projects. SCPPA Legal witt be devetoping

proforma Power Purchasing Agreements this year to be inctuded in future RFPs to hetp with

expediating project negotiations. ln addition, SCPPA ptans to have a instructional

presentation on SCPPA's lnftation Reduction Act FinanciatModet conducted and devetoped

by PFM in Aprit of this year.

The next meeting witl take ptace on March 19.

RESOURCE PLANNING

The Resource Planning Working Group (RPWG) met on March 1. The RPWG received its

second presentation of a Member's lntegrated Resource Ptan (lRP), this time from Pasadena

Water and Power (PWP). PWP presented their chatlenges and lessons learned from their

recent fiting of their lRP. The RPWG witt routinety schedute IRP presentations from Members

who are required to fite an IRP to the CEC. We expect atlMembers to present their IRP to

the group before the end of 2024.

The next RPWG witt be on April 4.

Page 4



RISK AAANAGEMENT

The Risk Management Working Group (RMWG) hetd its monthty meeting on March 6. During

the meeting, the Group reviewed the timetine for the NAES Corporation year 3 training and

discussed the year 2 training invoices. Atso, the Group discussed the upcoming Aprit

presentation from S&P, which witt provide an overview of the S&P ptatform, address

technicat questions, and hightight new features. Lastly, Vernon shared with the Group

provisions of its Risk Management Poticy approved by its City Council retating to limits on

Vernon staff's authority to approve certain energy and naturat gas transactions.

The next meeting is scheduted for Aprit 3.

SAFETY

The Safety Working Group (SWG) did not meet this month. The SWG meets on an ad-hoc

basis.

TRANSPORTATION ELECTRI FICATION

The Transportation Etectrification Working Group did not meet this month. The next

meeting is scheduted for March 13,2024.

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION ENGINEERING & OPERATIONS

(TeD Eeo)

The Transmission & Distribution Engineering & Operation Working Group (T&D WG) met on

March 5. The T&D WG discussed ptanning for 2024 T&D E&O Annual Conference. The

group decided unanimousty to host the upcoming conference at the SCPPA Training

Lenter. We expect each participating Member to provide a presentation for this year's

Annual Conference. Pandora Consutting witl present an overatl System Retiabitity,

Restoration, and Response (SR3) Study Report for att Participating Members and their
comparabte rankings with similar utilities at next month's meeting.

The next T&D WG meeting witt be on April 2.

Page 5



RECURRING/ROLLING SOLICITATIONS:

NAME: Request for Proposals:2024 SCPPA Renewabtes Energy Resources

TWORKING GROUP: Renewables

ISSUE DATE: February 1,2074 CLOSE DATE: June 27,2024

DESCRIPTION:

SCPPA's semi-annuat rotting RFP to soticit proposats from devetopers for

renewabte resources with or without energy storage (Solar, Wind, Geothermat,

Biomass, and Smatl Hydro) utitizing the lnflation Reduction Act to meet

Members' IRP and RPS goats.

uPcoMlNG/RECENT SOLICITATIONS (NEWCONTINUED SERVICES):

Web-based information, Emait, and Newsletter subscriptions

focused on Residential Customer Engagement, Energy Efficiency
NAME: programs, Retationship-Buitding for Residentiat and Key Accounts

Customers, and Energy Efficiency Education.

WORKING GROUP: Pubtic Benefits Working Group

rssuE DATE: May 25' 2023 
cLosE DATE: June 30' 2023

DESCRIPTION:

The agreement for these services is in the final stage of the contract
negoti;ting process. SCPPA presented the vendor with a "Last, Best, and

Finat" on contract terms. The setected vendor was not abte to come to an

agreement with SCPPA, and SCPPA witt not move forward with a contract.
This RFP witt be deteted from the list in April's update.

: NAME: Etectric Vehicle Suppty Equipment and Services

WORKING GROUP: Transportation Electrification

March 2024 June 2024
ISSUE DATE: ,':'.], ::.-. CLOSE DATE:rvevE (Tentative) - (Tentative)

Page 6



DESCRIPTION:

Soticitation for the provision of EVSE Services (EV Charger lnstattation, Design

and Build, Back Office Support Services, Operation and Maintenance, and EV

Equipment Reptacement Parts)

NAlrtE: Request for Proposals:2024 Stand-Atone Energy Storage Systems

WORKING GROUP: Resource Ptanning

ISSUE DATE: TBD CLOSE DATE: TBD

DESCRIPTION:

SCPPA Members seek Stand-Alone Energy Storage Systems (ESS) to support

Members' procurement of renewabte resources in meeting their Renewable

Portfotio Standards (RPS) and procurement targets regarding Assembty Bitt (AB)

2514. This RFP seeks proposals for stand-alone ESS in areas relevant to SCPPA

Members' territories (CAISO Batancing Authority (BA), llD BA, and at specific

locations within the I-ADWP BA system).

NON,BOARD APPROVED CONTRACT EXTENSIONS:

a Sargent & Lundy- Extended existing Professional Services Agreement retated to

transmission design services at the Apex Power Project for one additionat year.

Agreement now expires on December 16,2024.

Tetra Tech, lnc. - Extend the Professional Services Agreement for final 3-year

term. Agreement witt now expire on August 18,2027. (lndependent third-party

verification of annual Green House Gas (GHG) emission report)

Michaet S , Executive Director

Southern Catifornia Pubtic Power Authority

PageT

a



ffiut AGENDA ITEM STAFF REPORT

March 21,2024 RESOLUTION NUMBER: 2024-011

Refinancing of the Apex Power Project, Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A (Tax-

Exempt) and 2014 Series B (Federally Taxable)

MEETING DATE:

SUBJECT:

DISCUSSION: OR CONSENT: n

RECOMMENDATION:

Adopt a Resolution authorizing the preparation of all documents necessary for the refinancing of the
Apex Power Project, Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A (Tax-Exempt) and 2014 Series B (Federally
Taxable).

Se/ecf the appropriate box(es):

FROM:

Finance X
METHOD OF SELECTION:

Competitive

Cooperative Purchase

Sole Source

Other

Other (Please describe) :

T
n
n
X

Project Development

Program Development

Reg u latory/Leg is lative

Project Ad m in istration

Legal
N/A

Executive Director n
MEMBER PARTICIPATION:

Sponsoring Member: LADWP

Other Members Potentially Participating None

Approved by Executive Director:

{GENDA ST,\FF REPORT TE}IPL,\TE Pnge I of3 v.3,812023



BACKGROUND:

SCPPA currently has outstanding $230,035,000 in Apex Power Project, Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series
A and B. The 2014 Series A are fixed rate tax-exempt bonds issued in the amount of $151 ,880,000
with a final maturity date of July 1,2038 and are fully outstanding. The 2014 Series B are fixed rate
federally taxable bonds issued in the amount of $166,980,000 with a final maturity date of July 1,2030,
of which $78,155,000 is currently outstanding. Both bond series have an optional redemption date of
July 1 ,2024.

The bonds were issued in 2014 to finance the cost of acquisition of the Apex Power Project ("Project"),
and the costs of certain replacement parts for, capital improvements to, and insurance and other initial
costs for the Project. The Project is a natural gas-fired, combined cycle generating facility, nominally-
rated at 531 MW, located in Clark County, Nevada.

The Los Angels Department of Water and Power ("LADWP") is the sole SCPPA Member participant of
the Project.

DISCUSSION:

The current plan of finance anticipates issuing fixed rate refunding revenue bonds to refinance the
outstanding 2014 Series A and B bonds, amortizing to the same final maturity in 2038.

On March 4, 2024, the Finance Committee discussed the proposed refinancing and recommended
bringing a Resolution to the Board of Directors ("Board") authorizing the preparation of all documents
necessary for the sale and issuance of refunding revenue bonds. SCPPA will incur costs in connection
with financial advisor, bond counsel, and tax counsel services for the preparation of the documents and
related activities. The payment of financial advisor, bond counsel, and tax counsel fees will be
contingent on the successful closing of the transaction. Once the draft documents have been prepared,
they will be brought to the Board for consideration and approval at a future Board meeting.

o Selection Method:

The selection of the financing team will be done in accordance with SCPPA's Policy for Financing
and Selection of the Financing Team (Policy) and will consider the criteria as provided in the Policy
to determine the undenruriting firm(s) that will deliver the overall best value for the transaction.

SCPPA's Authority:a

The refinancing of the Apex Power Project revenue bonds is in accordance with the California Joint
Exercise of Powers Act and the SCPPA Joint Powers Agreement. The SCPPA Joint Powers
Agreement provides the authority for SCPPA to finance generation and transmission projects,
including the refinancing of such projects.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The refinancing is expected to generate debt service savings.

AC E\DA ST.\FF REP0RT TF-}IPI-,\T'E Page 2 ol'.1 v.3i8/202i



ATTACHMENT:
1. Resolution No. 2024-011

AGE\DA ST.\FF REPORT TEi!IPL.\I'E Pnge 3 of3 v.31812023



139190451.2     
(Initial Resolution – Apex Power 2024 Refunding)

[Project Vote: LADWP] 

RESOLUTION NO. 2024-011 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SOUTHERN 
CALIFORNIA PUBLIC POWER AUTHORITY (I) AUTHORIZING THE 
PREPARATION OF ALL DOCUMENTS NECESSARY OR 
APPROPRIATE TO SELL AND ISSUE APEX POWER PROJECT 
REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, PROCEEDS OF WHICH WILL BE 
USED TO REFUND OUTSTANDING APEX POWER PROJECT, 
REVENUE BONDS, 2014 SERIES A (TAX-EXEMPT) AND APEX POWER 
PROJECT, REVENUE BONDS, 2014 SERIES B (FEDERALLY TAXABLE) 
AND (II) AUTHORIZING OFFICERS OF THE AUTHORITY TO DO ALL 
THINGS DEEMED NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE  

WHEREAS, the Finance Committee of the Southern California Public Power Authority 
(the “Authority”) has determined that it is in the best interest of the Authority to proceed with 
preparing all documents necessary or appropriate to sell and issue bonds, notes or other securities, 
in one or more series (collectively, the “Bonds”), the proceeds of which will be used to refund all 
or a portion of the Authority’s Apex Power Project, Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A (Tax-Exempt) 
and Apex Power Project, Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series B (Federally Taxable); and 

WHEREAS, once prepared, drafts of the contracts proposed to be entered into by the 
Authority in connection with the sale and issuance, or incurrence, as applicable, of the Bonds will 
be presented for the Board’s consideration. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the Authority as 
follows: 

1. The Authority’s staff and the Authority’s team of financing professionals 
(including the personnel at the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power who work on 
Authority matters, the Authority’s Bond Counsel, the Authority’s Special Tax Counsel and the 
Authority’s Municipal Advisor) are hereby authorized (i) to prepare all documents necessary or 
appropriate for the sale and issuance, or incurrence, as applicable, of the Bonds, and (ii) with the 
assistance of the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power, to solicit proposals from certain 
underwriters and financial institutions with respect to the sale and issuance, or incurrence, as 
applicable, of the Bonds. 

2. Each of the President, any Vice President, the Executive Director, the Chief 
Financial and Administrative Officer, the Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, any other officer of 
the Authority, and any designee of the foregoing, is hereby authorized and directed to do and cause 
to be done any and all acts and things deemed necessary or appropriate for carrying out the 
transactions contemplated by this Resolution. 



139190451.2
(Initial Resolution – Apex Power 2024 Refunding) 

2 

3. This Resolution shall become effective immediately. 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION is approved and adopted by the Authority this 21st day 
of March, 2024. 

_____________________________________ 
PRESIDENT 

Southern California Public 
Power Authority 

ATTEST: 

_____________________________________ 
              ASSISTANT SECRETARY 
               Southern California Public 
                    Power Authority 


	Board Cover 
	Consent Calendar 
	o	Special Meeting Minutes: January 31, 2024
	o	Special Meeting Minutes (Morning): February 15, 2024
	o	Regular Meeting Minutes: February 15, 2024 
	o	Special Meeting Minutes (Afternoon): February 15, 2024
	o	Special Meeting Minutes: March 5, 2024
	1.	CY 2023 Q4 Renewables Operating Report
	2.	Finance Committee Meeting Minutes: February 5, 2024
	3.	Monthly Investment Report: January 2024
	4.	SCPPA A&G Budget Comparison Report: January 2024
	5.	Palo Verde Report: February 2024
	6.	Magnolia Power Project Operations Report: February 2024
	7.	Federal Legislative Report: February 2024

	Executive Director Report 
	Working Group Update

	CHIEF FINANCIAL & ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICER REPORT
	Resolution 2024-011





